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Corporate Profile
NG P

Vedan International (Holdings) Ltd. has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong since 2003. The Group is the leading producer of fermentation-based amino
acids, food additive products and cassava starch-based industrial products in Asia. Our
products are sold to food distributors, international trading companies, and manufacturers of
food, paper, textile, and chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the PRC,
Japan, Taiwan and several European countries. Most of our products are marketed under the
VEDAN brand name.
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Corporate Profile (continued)
DR )

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has undergoing continuous
expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group is currently
the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian region, and the
largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in Xiamen to focus on
developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group further acquired the
assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan Foods Company Limited,
which will be developed into its business operations center in the
PRC, signifying its determination and commitment to become a major
player in the PRC market. To ensure the Group has a stable supply of
starch and a strong production platform for starch related products,
Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November
2005. In December the same year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake
Enterprise Co., Ltd. was established and started production of GA
in April 2006. Shangdong Vedan Snowflake will play a crucial role
in Vedan's global supply chain in the future, allowing it to meet the
demand and to stabilize prices of raw materials, hence facilitate its
business development strategy in China.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and
China, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights

MBHEE
BE+t-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December
2009 2008

US$’000 Us$'000 Difference
FERT FEx =52
Turnover = -3 289,137 348,557 17%
Profit from operations & & AT 23,028 13,462 71%
Net profit HEF 17,983 8,403 46%
Shareholders’ funds AR R M 271,651 257,910 5%
Basic earnings per share (US cents) FREXRZF (FW) 1.18 0.55 46%
Diluted earnings per share (US cents) TREERF (=) 1.18 0.55 46%
Interim dividend per share (US cents) AR B (L) 0.273 0.3050 (10%)
Final dividend per share (US cents) HIRAR S (Z=AL) 0.317 = =
Dividend payout ratio PGPz 50% 55% (9%)

TURNOVER & %%
12 months ended 31 Dec 2009
HE-_ZZhAF+-_A=+—AHL+=6EA

in US$'000 F %7t

2009 287,137
2008 I 348,557
2007 317,431

TURNOVER BY PRODUCTS
RERIBEZEXER

12 months ended 31 Dec 2009
HE-_ZThF+-_A=+—HLE+=-EAA

76.8% MSG Bk

3.9% GARARER

Lysine

BamR

4.8% Modified
Starch
RS

5.3% Specialty
Chemicals

BALCEER
8.9% Others HAth

NET PROFIT £ Fl
12 months ended 31 Dec 2009
HE-_ZThF+_A=+—HBL+=EA

in US$'000 F %7t

2009 17,983
2008 [—— 8,403
2007 16,856

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION
BEtwESHoEER

12 months ended 31 Dec 2009
HE-_ZThF+_A=+—HLE+=-EA

52.1% Vietnam #&

18.9% The PRC HE]

19.5% Japan B

4.9%  ASEAN
Countries 2

4.6% Others Hfts
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Long-established in Asia, Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited is a premier manufacturer
of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive and cassava starch-based products.
Its prominent reputation has been built on the
quality manufacture of MSG, a key food additive
lying at the heart of the unique tastes of Asia’s
two billion consumers. The Group’s vision of the
future is simple: to expand and enrich its markets
across the Asian region while developing new
products for the demand of consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement

TE®RES

Starting from the second half of 2009, with production capacity of
the Vietnam plant stabilising, overall operating results and profit of
the Group rebounded. However, uncertainties arising from the global
economy and continuing rise in raw carbohydrate prices presented
a challenging operating environment for us. To mitigate the impact
of raw material prices on costs and to earn more stable profits, we
directed our attention towards maintaining the selling prices of
existing products while developing higher profit margin products and
markets.

In the fiscal year of 2009,
US$289,000,000, a decrease of approximately 17% against 2008.
The decline was mainly due to the installation of environmental

the Group recorded turnover of

protection equipment that had been proceeding for the first
three quarters. Other factors included substantial reduction in
production capacity for GA, lysine and modified starch, which led
to a contraction in sales volume and turnover. Still, market demand
for MSG continued to be strong and we were able to flexibly
adjust production processes and strengthen the pricing strategy
of the Group's products. Consequently, we achieved a 10.6%
increase in gross profit. Depreciation of the Vietnam Dong by nearly
10% did however offset the book profit of the Vietnam plant.
Our ability to mitigate the negative impact of a volatile currency,
combined with a surge in sales in the second half year enabled
the Group to report a net profit of US$17,980,000,

an increase of approximately 114% against 2008. Since a water

representing

fee of approximately US$7,700,000 which was levied for violating
environmental standards was fully recognised in the 2008 financial
year, such a fee had no further impact on 2009 profits.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFEHREE @)

In terms of geographical distribution and performance of each
business segment, both were affected by reduced output from
the Vietnam plant. To address this problem, we looked to our raw
material supply chain to supplement the lower output, subsequently
supplying products to markets where we are able to derive higher
margin, such as Vietnam and Japan. In the case of Vietnam, the
market proved to be the Group’s major profit contributor, achieving
significant growth during the period. Expectedly, the global downturn
that affected economies around the world did suppress the sale of
our products in certain markets. Turnover from ASEAN countries
dropped by a substantial 61.5% year-on-year as the Group was
unable to meet the needs of local customers due to reduced output.

Sales of other products by the Group were either affected by
reduced capacity. With international lysine prices remaining low,
we opted to suspend production of this product during the period.
Modified starch was affected by environmental protection equipment
installation at the Vietnam plant as well as a shortage of cassava;
hence sales fell by 54.3% from the previous year.

The performance of our operations in China was yet satisfactory
during the year. However, favourable government policies have
triggered a new round of consolidation which has resulted in a
noticeable rise in sales, driving up prices. Already, we have achieved a
modest improvement in business performance over 2008.

As the environmental issue came to our attention in 2008, we sought
to immediately remedy by improving related facilities and systems.
In addition to making improvements specified by the Vietnam
government, we invested in wastewater treatment facilities and
a recycling solid fertiliser plant. Subsequently, the Vietnam plant
gained 1SO14001 environmental management certification from The
British and Standard Institution and OHSAS18001 Occupation Health
and Safety Assessment Series for health and safety management
systems accreditations in November 2009. We are committed to
thoroughly enhancing our environmental protection credentials, and
will continue to improve all aspect of our operation, including the
hardware and software of the Group’s management system as well
as training of supervisors and staff. Vouching for the effectiveness of
our labours over the past year, we have earned recognition from the

Environmental Protection Department in Vietnam.

DRMETIEATRLBEEH I RHBEE
EAREEASEBHYE TEEQLENE
043 B EIIR 4] - 0o R ) R LA 2 4 1 A
R % - 3 B 2E HLE B E R M i I A
BAATISE - R E S ESEN RN EED
ST ERE - B RH2RER
MRE2EROPE FSHE L QERRYT
B Mty B R E R LR
RIS B LB A FRAHAETB6.5%
MEAEE 2R SHELRRUSHERS
2B

AR EEAHEMSEEMREX B EfRRT
EMENBEEMFZEHEENRE MBRIEER
BIRERDERR  ERAMAN - BREBIDHAR
TR IEEENMKRE B BUERBBESNE
REREHZEEBEARZRHMOEHR  HET
RE—FERP54.3% °

BT BRI EN M EER TS —KE
AR TEEMHENEEREZRT £
BREMBLL —ZEZN\FHEES -

RS N\FHEREERRERE  EEAD
EHBERELENBRARSRREHELER
gt RIS BN E KA S E R ESN
EREER(CIRE EIIG KR IR - th R
BB B RCAE R A E R - MR BB 5 mE - 48
BE—BREBNE ] RRERZETAF+—
A EX18 B1BSI (The British Standard Institution)ffT
M AIISO140013% 55 & 12 & 4% EHOHSAS 18001
BEL2HETERARE - SBHFEENLE
2 EEEE R B A IMIUR B E -
FIRR T &R A F AR E/INTT - 15 48
AR EEEEESEEBUTIRERIITE R
BE o EEE AT AERARN TIERESE S -
SEeHRROESRERIBEEEHRCH
B BBER  LERALOE S AN
BRI BEREIQTN [ FRIRE  KELE
2 AR

Annual Report 2009 3% 09



Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFEHREE @)

PROSPECTS FOR 2010

Looking at the first quarter of 2010, material and energy prices
continued to rise, creating greater concern over market instability.
An imbalance in supply and demand for agricultural products drove
manufacturers around the world to scurry for what products were
available; hence pushing up prices for major materials used by the
Group, namely, molasses and cassava; and pressuring the production
cost in 2010. To better protect the Group from rising prices, we
established a special unit to focus on securing raw materials. This unit
will also conduct more extensive acquisitions to stabilise the cost of
securing raw materials. Taking into account the uncertain economic
environment and rise in price of carbohydrates, we will continue to
employ a prudent business strategy in 2010. Our primary goals will
be to leverage the Group’s core strengths, access a steady supply
of raw materials and stabilise production costs while our ultimate
objective is to generate greater profits. To enhance profitability, we
will aim to bolster sales in major markets and control the selling price
of our products.

The Group will take advantage of the changing economic climate
to quickly implement marketing strategies. As well, we will develop
our distribution and sales channels in order to realise the full
potential of the Group's sales network. At the same time, we will
take advantage of the burgeoning market in Vietnam to launch new
products and enhance our sales presence by, leveraging our well
established distribution channels. And such efforts will help further
boost our brand awareness. With a booming economy in Vietnam
and China, the Group will identify cooperative projects to enhance
our geographical coverage, raise our international experience, and
ultimately broaden our revenue and profit streams.

10  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BB (8) HRAT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFEREE @)

In 2009, the Group saw improvements in its results and profit as
production resumed at the Vietnam plant and prices for our products
stabilised. However, we also faced pressure from rising raw material
prices which caused costs to increase and profits to diminish. To
ease these pressures, the Group will integrate production, sales and
procurement strategies. The management remains optimistic about
the fundamentals of the Group’s core businesses as market demand
for our products have continued to grow. Moreover, the Group is
leading the industry in production technologies and distribution. As
environmental protection improvement work is completed, we are
growing confident of capitalising on our strengths in production
and sales through prudent business approach. We will seek to make
significant strides, setting higher result and profit targets for the
Group. That said, we will continue to abide by principles consistent
with being a responsible business. Accordingly, our objective is to
generate fruitful results for our shareholders and the Group while at
the same time contribute to society.

By order of the Board
Yang Tou-Hsiung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 April 2010
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As a successful long-term player in a market with significant entry barriers, Vedan International
has distinct competitive advantages that add real value to its products. With advanced expertise
in large-scale fermentation technology, starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is developing new products which represent the
latest breakthroughs in industrial science and look set to be major profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Since the financial crisis erupted in the second half of 2008, 2009
was generally expected to be a tough year, bogged down by the
economic recession and difficult business environment. Many
developed countries with more advanced economies were duly
affected by this severe downturn — a meltdown not seen in the past
decades. Fortunately, China and Vietnam, two of the Group's major
production bases, were less affected by the decline compared to
other countries.

In 2009, Vietnam's economy grew by 5.3%, better than the
3.5% that had been projected. The country also successfully
suppressed inflation from 19.89% to 6.88%, originally pushed up
by an overheated economy in the first half of 2008. Total exports
reached US$56,600,000,000, a decline of 9.7%, while total imports
amounted to US$68,800,000,000, a substantial decrease of 14.7%,
hence a trade deficit of US$12,200,000,000 for Vietnam in 2009.
In mainland China, the local economy continued to perform well
even following the downturn, achieving GDP growth of 8.7% -
well above all other nations. Contrasting with decreased demand by
developed countries, strong domestic consumption in China captured
the world’s attention. Rapid economic growth and surge in urban
population has resulted in a significant rise in number of restaurant
goers, in turn boosting the food processing industry and contributing
to sustainable growth of the MSG business in China. After intense
consolidation of the MSG industry in recent years, the future of the
GA and MSG markets are now expected to develop in a more steady
and orderly manner.

The Group's turnover during the period amounted to
Us$289,137,000, representing a decline of US$59,420,000 or 17%
year on year. The Group's production base in Vietnam reduced its
volume in September 2008 due to environmental protection issues.
Thus, the Group chose to adjust production, shifting part of its
capacity from lysine to GA. At the same time, on the premise of
meeting GA's demand through importing, the Group reducing sales
of GA while increasing output of MSG. Besides, the Group retained
stable customer portfolio and raised selling prices. Thus MSG, the
major product of the Group, recorded only a modest decrease in
sales, down 6.4% or US$15,207,000. During the period, the price
of MSG continued to rise and Vietnam’s consumer market remained
prosperous. Hence, gross profit did not decrease despite the drop in
turnover, instead climbing by 10.6% or US$6,823,000. Gross profit
margin grew from 18.5% in 2008 to 24.7% in 2009. Net profit and
net profit margin for the Group were US$17,983,000 and 6.2%
respectively. Net profit growth was 114%, or US$9,580,000, as
compared to US$8,403,000 in 2008.

14 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk f3 BB (3258) SR A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEFNWRED

In terms of sales activity, Vietnam was the sole market that recorded
growth during the period. Other markets were unable to meet
demand as a result of the production cut, forcing sales in various
countries to drop. On the product front, revenue from MSG - the
Group’s main product — dipped by 6.4% or US$15,207,000. Sales
derived from other products such as lysine, GA and modified starch
declined substantially by 95.1% or US$19,441,000; 41.6% or
US$8,038,000; and 54.3% or US$16,504,000, respectively.

A major task of the Group in 2009 was to improve the environmental
protection standards of the Vedan Vietnam plant. The Group aimed
to not only meet legal requirements on environmental protection,
but to exceed those requirements and become an outstanding
green manufacturer. Drawing from the diligence of all staff at the
plant, the Group completed installation of additional wastewater
treatment equipment and expanded solid fertilizer production lines
and condensation equipment as planned. Trial production run was
also completed in December 2009, ahead of the plant’s gradual
increase in production volume. The Group's efforts in meeting
environmental protection standards were recognised by relevant
Vietnam government authorities. Vedan Vietnam subsequently
received 1SO14001 environmental management system certification
in November 2009 and OHSAS18001 Occupation Health and Safety
Assessment Series for health and safety management systems. All
of these achievements underscore the Group's commitment and
determination to run a business that is conducive to sustainability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEFNWEI N

BUSINESS ANALYSIS

4

Market Analysis

EESW:

(1

TABLE 1: COMPARISON OF SALES IN VARIOUS REGIONS

§_

HRMESEMEE

Unit: US$'000 E8f7 : T3 7T

™5

HEDH:

2009 2008 2009/2008

Amount % Amount % Difference %
Area & o] % &% % =% %
Vietnam A=) 150,562 52.1% 148,860 42.7% 1,702 1.1%
Japan =N 56,370 19.5% 73,523 21.1% (17,153) -23.3%
The PRC R 54,697 18.9% 57,229 16.4% (2,532) -4.4%
ASEAN Countries §:) 14,211 4.9% 36,956 10.6% (22,745) -61.5%
Other regions Hity 13,297 4.6% 31,989 9.2% (18,692) -58.4%
Total FEBeS 289,137 100.0% 348,557 100.0% (59,420) -17.0%

(1) Vietnam (=) BETHS

)

Vietnam is the Group's largest market. It recorded slight
growth of 1.1% or US$1,702,000 in turnover due to the
rise in sales of MSG. Decline in sales of GA and lysine
were 67.7% and 98.7% respectively. Turnover from
Vietnam amounted to US$150,562,000 and accounted
for 52.1% of total turnover, up from 42.7% in 2008,
though similar with 2007 at 50.1%. Anticipating
Vietnam’s economy to flourish, the Group has gained
a solid foothold in the country and expects sales to
continue growing.

Japan

Turnover from Japan grew by 54.8% back in 2008,
making it the highest growth market that year. However,
affected by reduced production in 2009, demand for the
Group's major products such as MSG, lysine and modified
starch could not be fully met. Consequently, turnover
from Japan was down by 23.3%, or US$17,153,000, to
US$56,370,000 (2008: US$73,523,000). With production
capacity gradually returning to normal in 2009, the Group
will be able to again tap this market, realizing further
turnover growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWED N (@
(3) The PRC

(2)

4)

The market contracted by a modest 4.4%, or
US$2,532,000, because modified starch was in short
supply, a result of reduced production from the Vietnam
factory. The price of GA started to pick up noticeably
in the second half year, achieving satisfactory turnover
growth. Turnover from the China market reached
US$54,697,000, lower than US$57,229,000 in 2008.
Despite of total turnover decline, this segment accounted
for 18.9% of the Group’s total turnover — higher than
last year’s 16.4%.

ASEAN Countries

During the reporting period, overall turnover from ASEAN
countries reached US$14,211,000 and accounted for
4.9% of total turnover of the Group, far below 10.6%,
or US$36,956,000 achieved in 2008. Turnover plunged
by US$22,745,000, or 61.5% - the largest decline
experienced among segments — owing to reduced
production capacity in Vietnam resulting in a shortage of
MSG, GA and modified starch products, etc. Turnover is
expected to pick up as the Vietnam plant has resumed
supply of the aforesaid products since 2010.

Sales Analysis by Product
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TABLE 2: COMPARISON OF SALES OF VARIOUS PRODUCTS

RO BEHERHENER
Unit: US$'000 87 : T3t
2009 2008 2009/2008

Amount % Amount % Difference %
k| % k| % =5 %
MSG K15 222,188 76.8% 237,395 68.1% (15,207) -6.4%
GA AR 11,296 3.9% 19,334 5.6% (8,038) -41.6%
Lysine R 1,007 0.3% 20,448 5.9% (19,441)  -95.1%
Starch-M BB 13,874 4.8% 30,378 8.7% (16,504) -54.3%
Seasoning TR 2,558 0.9% 2,541 0.7% 17 0.7%
Specialty Chemicals A2 5 15,448 5.3% 18,195 5.2% (2,747)  -15.1%
Fertilizer et 11,341 4.0% 12,117 3.5% (776) -6.4%
Others HAh 11,425 4.0% 8,149 2.3% 3,276 40.2%
Total FEBES 289,137 100.0% 348,557  100.0% (59,420) -17.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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@)

3)

AT ()

MSG and GA

Turnover from the MSG business declined by 6.4% in
2009, or US$15,207,000, to US$222,188,000 when
compared to 2008, but still 9% higher than in 2007.
Since the Vietnam plant cut production because of
breaching environmental standards, the company
adjusted its output of GA, securing external sources as
a means of minimizing the impact on its major product,
MSG. Specifically, GA production was cut by a substantial
96.6% in the first half of 2009 compared to the previous
corresponding period. However, after production resumed
in the second half year, the overall decline equaled
41.6%, generating turnover of US$11,296,000, thus
representing a decrease of US$8,038,000. Turnover
from MSG and GA therefore accounted for 80.7% of
total turnover, a slight increase from 73.7% in 2008,
though underscoring the significant impact that reduced
production had on the products. The installation of
related environmental protection equipment was
completed in 2010, and production will resumed normal
gradually.

Lysine

Compared with the increasing price of MSG and
GA, lysine remained stable because of persistently
high material and energy costs that have suppressed
the profitability of the product. In 2009, the Group
decided to reduce production significantly after taking
into consideration low prices and environmental
factors, hence, turnover of this product only reached
US$1,007,000 for the year, representing a sharp
reduction of 95.1% from US$20,448,000 in 2008.

Modified starch/natural starch

Taking environmental factor into consideration, the
Group cut production of modified starch during the
period, causing turnover to drop by US$16,504,000 or
approximately 54.3% to US$13,874,000. This segment
accounted for 4.8% of total turnover, down from 8.7%
a year earlier. As relevant environmental facilities have
since been installed, full production will be considered
based on market demand. In 2009/2010, the output of
cassava was affected by a natural disaster in Vietnam.
International prices for cassava remained high due to
diminished output, and prices were equally high in
Vietnam, hence turnover and profitability were inevitably
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEFNWRED

(4)  Specialty chemicals
Sales volume of hydrochloric acid and caustic soda was
also affected by reduced production, with turnover
down 15.1%, or US$2,747,000, to US$15,448,000. The
segment accounted for around 5.3% of total turnover,
similar to the level reached in 2008. Production is
expected to increase in 2010.

(5)  Fertilizer
The fertilizer segment reported turnover of
US$11,341,000 for the year, down by US$776,000
or 6.4% from a year earlier (2008: US$12,117,000),
and accounted for 4.0% of total turnover. As the solid
fertilizer production facilities expanded its production line
in late 2009, turnover is expected to increase substantially
in 2010.

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS

In 2009, international prices for sugar — having reached a 29-year
record high — subsequently pushed up prices for another major
product, molasses. As for cassava, its prices initially dropped, affected
by the financial downturn in the second half of 2008, but picked up
by the second half of 2009. The Group expects prices for cassava to
remain relatively high during the first half of 2010.

(1)  Molasses

Prices for molasses recorded moderate growth in 2008,
followed by a sharp increase in 2009, which was mainly
attributed to a shortage of sugarcane, in turn due to heavy
rainfall in Brazil and drought in India. In the future, prices for
molasses and sugarcane will continue to be affected by such
factors as extreme weather, demand from alcohol producers
using molasses and sugarcane to make wine, and increasing
oil prices. As molasses prices are expected to increase in
2010/2011, countries including Brazil and India have enlarged
their sugarcane plantations. With output expected to increase,
new pressure will be placed on product prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Cassava starch

Rocketing cassava prices during the 2007/2008 production
season prompted farmers to increase the scale of their
plantations in 2008/2009; however, following the financial
slowdown in the second half of 2008, prices subsequently
declined noticeably. As the world economy began to recover in
2009, demand for cassava started to rise spurring a new jump
in prices. Extreme weather conditions and insect infestation in
Vietnam, Thailand and Cambodia reduced the supply of cassava
during the period, causing prices to rise markedly higher in
the second half year. Price during the 2010/2011 production
season is expected to rise due to weather, strong demand from
the largest cassava producer in Asia, i.e. alcohol producers in
Thailand, and the demand for cassava starch and dried cassava
from China.

Liquid Ammonia
The prices of liquid ammonia rose by over 60% in 2008, but
plunged by over 40% in 2009. Prices started to rebound in
the second half of 2009 and are expected to maintain stable
growth in 2010.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

4

Cash flow and financial resources

During the period, cash and bank deposits of the Group
amounted to US$39,614,000, which was US$3,328,000 or
approximately 9.2% higher than in late 2008. In addition,
short-term loans amounted to US$26,375,000 while middle-
to-long-term loans amounted to US$16,222,000. Short-term
loans dropped by US$19,225,000 but middle to long-term
loans increased by US$8,670,000. Bank borrowings were mainly
denominated in US dollars (92%) and Taiwan dollars (8%).
62% of all loans were short-term, with the remaining 38%
being middle-to-long-term loans.

Account receivables decreased by US$1,941,000 or
approximately 6.7% to US$26,937,000. Inventory also declined
by US$6,900,000 or approximately 9.5%. Total inventory cost
amounted to US$65,596,000.

Gearing ratio (total loans over shareholders interest) was
15.6%. Net gearing ratio (total borrowings after deducting
cash and deposit over shareholders interest) was 1.1%. Current
ratio rose from 1.93 to 2.50 because of decreased short-term
loans. Interest expenses declined notably by US$2,046,000 or
approximately 56.2% to US$1,593,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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(2) Capital Expenditure

(3)

(4)

As scheduled, the Vietnam plant completed the set-up and
trial run of solid fertilizer production lines as well as purchase
of concentration equipment in late 2009 - part of efforts to
improve environmental protection and recycling capabilities.
To finance this investment, the Group’s capital expenditure
amounted to US$37,566,000 of which US$16,222,000 came
from middle-to-long-term bank loans and the remaining was
financed by internal capital.

Exchange rate

The Vietnam Dong experienced a second substantial
depreciation during the year. The first occurred in March 2009
when the Central Bank of Vietnam relaxed the trading range of
the currency from 3% to 5%. Besides, the Bank announced a
5.44% depreciation of the Vietnam Dong in November but the
trading range was narrowed from 5% to 3%. The Vietnamese
currency depreciated by approximately 10% for the period
according to the trading price of the bank. Renminbi was
relatively stable when compared with the Vietnam Dong and
the Group's sales transactions in China were mainly conducted
in Renminbi.

Dividend

Basic earnings per share for the period were 1.18 US cents.
The Board of Directors has resolved to give out a dividend of
0.59 US cents for the whole year, representing a payout ratio of
50%. During interim 2009, 0.273 US cents dividend per share
was paid out, final dividend to be paid is 0.317 US cents per
share.

PROGRESS ON THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ISSUE AT THE VIETNAM PLANT

The Group completed improvement work, as approved by the
Environmental Protection Department of Vietnam, according
to schedule. Some of the initiatives included installation
of additional wastewater treatment facilities, expansion
of concentration equipment and solid fertilizer plant. All
improvement works were finished.

Paid on time the full sewage charge of US$3,856,000 in
compliance with regulations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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- The Vietnam plant earned 1ISO14001 environmental
management system accreditation in November 2009 as
scheduled, and OHSAS18001 Occupation Health and Safety
Assessment Series for health and safety management systems.

- As requested by the Environmental Protection Department of
Vietnam, a taskforce formed by scholars from the National
University of Ho Chi Minh City completed a preliminary
investigation report in February identifying the extent and
degree of pollution caused by Vedan. The report, which will
be submitted to the Environmental Protection Department,
will help to quickly resolve damage claims filed by neighboring
farmers and fishermen. This matter is expected to reach a
resolution by the first half of this year.

PROSPECTS

Over the past year, the Group was seriously affected by the
environmental protection issue that struck the Vietnam plant. This
matter not only led to a noticeable drop in turnover resulting from
reduced production, but also affected many expansion plans. Giving
priority to environmental protection, the Group postponed a number
of initiatives and growth opportunities. However, with the hard work
of the entire workforce in the past year, the Group managed to
overcome many difficulties and challenges relating to environmental
protection and can now hasten the implementation of schemes and
projects that were delayed in order to drive growth momentum.

Regarding business growth, the Group will continue efforts to
improve its distribution network, enhance staff training, develop
existing channels and brands as well as step up distribution channel
development. This will facilitate the Group’s new product launch and
allow it to build a strong sales platform. With the gradual resumption
of normal production of MSG, GA and modified starch, overseas
markets such as ASEAN countries, Japan and Europe will now be well
supplied, which will lead to growth in turnover.

In the coming year, Vietnam Vedan will accelerate new product
development to meet the needs of the fast growing Vietnam and
China markets. With improving efficiency being the main objective,
the Group’s primary task in 2010 will be to enhance internal
production efficiency and introduce a corporate ERP system for
raising competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Due to the serious global climate change, fast capital flow in the
world market, increasing demand from emerging economies with
huge populations such as China and India, and the popularity of
biomass energy, the price of agricultural products are set to rise
and fluctuate which will pose challenges to enterprises in related
industries. The Group has been conducting detailed research and
analysis of such developments and has prepared and formulated
related strategies.

Looking ahead, apart from speeding up the resumption of production
capacity in Vietnam, the Group will grow healthily as exploring new
markets is of utmost importance. In the meantime, the Group will
capture growth opportunities, seek for cooperation with alliances and
take its business to another height amid quickly changing operating
environment.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of 3,703 employees,
3,058 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 630 by
subsidiaries in China and 15 by the Taiwan Branch.

The Group's employees are remunerated in accordance with
prevailing industry practices, and with reference to the financial
performance of the Group and performance of individual employees.
Other fringe benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance,
medical coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to
ensure staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness. To enhance
the quality of human resources, bolster the professional skills and
management abilities of employees and build localised workforces,
the Group provides job rotation and internal and external training
courses on professional skills, languages, and other self-improvement
programs.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications and strong brand recognition, one
of the Group’s most important and well-guarded assets. Its renowned
“Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is considered essential throughout the
food processing industries across Asia for its role in enhancing the flavours
of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys a huge and constantly growing market
throughout Vietnam, the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United
States.
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Profile of Directors

EEET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 67, our Chairman. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial Vocational High
School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately 47 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry and is one of the founders of the
Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is responsible for
formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
also a director of Vietnam Vedan and a director of Taiwan Vedan.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 55, an executive Director. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 34 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Vietnam
Vedan and Taiwan Vedan. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a member of
Taiwan MSG Manufacturing Association. Mr. Yang holds an EMBA
Degree from Xiamen University in China in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 52, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang obtained a master degree in
agricultural chemistry in 1986 from Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang has 21 years’ working experience in the MSG industry
and has been involved in the development of the business operations
of Vietnam Vedan since 1991. During the last 19 years, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang was involved in the development and management of
Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
Group's operations and strategic management.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 46, an executive Director and the director of
Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 13 years'
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

ESEN )

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 56, a non-executive Director. Mr. HUANG
is a director of Vietnam Vedan and a vice president of Taiwan
Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting
and statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 32 years’ experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng, 49, a non-executive Director. Mr. Chou is
the Supervisor of Vedan Enterprise Corporation. Mr. Chou was the
director and legal consultant of Wincome Technologies Company
Limited and he has over 17 years of experience in the legal industry.
Mr. Chou obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow
University, Master of Law degree from East China University and
Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 48, an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO has
approximately 17 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 49, is an Independent Non-executive Director
and member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Ko has been
the executive partner of Weyong International & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and subsequently
obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting from the
University of Delaware, USA.

Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray, 50, is an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Chen,
holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern
lllinois State University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National
Taiwan University. Mr. Chen is presently the Managing Director of
ImEELTFRBMH AR DA (Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation). He has more than 22 years of experience in securities
business in Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General Manager
of Yuanta Core Pacific Capital Management Corp. (ST AEH & E
MR AR A A]) , the Chairman of Concord Securities Investment &
Consulting Corp. (EMF#EHIREBER RN AR A ) and the Senior
Vice President of Concord Securities Corp. (EMBEFRMNBRAR) .

FRITEE

BERRRE 56 FATEF HELLENEHY

@%Z%%%éé%ﬂzmﬂﬁ'ﬁf)ﬁiiﬁ

*ﬂﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁé% BFHERZ g5
ua‘l’?°E§E$Ef7ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?§ﬁ%’]ﬁ?2

FRRER-

BBREL 4955 FERTEF - FARERKN
CEBRNDARARZESE - ALLEL BB
B BRARZEROEEEM Fii&ﬁ%ﬁ
BITFER AEEERSRRRBEZRE L
i ERBUEBRABBR T BU LIRS
BB

/25

BIUERITES

HMERLE 485 BUFNTERHRERZER

@%§°£%$“%F*ﬂﬂﬂiﬁfﬂﬂﬁ¢
EaBRIAXBEREARB L RARBLEM

ER—AWN_FERFBEASEREEAEELES

fi-HBEERBE—REMEBEBEMER

PrZITEBA - BEENBI7TEFRELR-

FRIEEE - 495% - ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%%gﬁéé
EXRE -MAELEE —_ZTTTFREA/[EEMES
BB EEtMmEBAZHTERA - ﬂﬁ‘ﬁi
EXENGEEFAREBRREREE LB IR
XERNEABER S BREBBR T B -

BRI EE 505 BUIIFRTESRFALEESR
%% B €K 8 [R5t 45 A Eastern lllinois State
Universityz T B BB LTS240 AR B EBE L
RBZELTE - RAEEBRAKBELSHRER
DERRTZEREEIE - FRA B BEER
BE@BD2FEH  SETTAESREBMRY
ERATREIEFHALIE  FEMESREBALR
MBERAREFBMEMBEFRDER QG R
EFEE

Annual Report 2009 3% 27



Profile of Senior Executives
SREEREHN

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 60, our Chief Financial Officer and vice
president of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National
Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH
is responsible for the finance functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 31 years of finance management and banking
experience. Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial institutions in
Taiwan and Vietnam including International Bank of Singapore and
ABN AMRO Bank. Mr. HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon
Bank, Ho Chi Minh City Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked
as the President in Gia Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang, Wen-Hu, 49, chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Maotai. Mr Yang graduated from the Finance Faculty of National
Taiwan University and received his Master Degree from Waseda
University in Japan. Mr. Yang held the position of assistant in the
External Trade Department of Taiwan Vedan and had more than 17
years of experience in international trade. Mr. Yang is responsible for
the planning and supervision of the operation strategy of Shanghai
Vedan and Xiamen Maotai.

Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng, 53, president of Shangdong Vedan
Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. Mr YANG graduated from Taichung
Commercial College and is responsible for the overall administration
and operation of Shangdong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. He has had 16 years of work experience in the MSG and food
additive. Before joining the Group, Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng served
as the manager of the product development department in Tah Hsin
Industrial Corporation and San- Sun Hat & Caps Co., Ltd.

Mr. YANG, Tung, 39, Vice Chairman and general manager of the
China Region, and Vice President of Shanghai Vedan Enterprise, is
responsible for the company’s financial and administrative work.
Mr. Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Northwest in New York, USA. Mr. Yang joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1995, and had held various positions in Purchasing,
Logistics and administration.

Mr. LO Chi Man, 48, the company secretary of the Company.
He is responsible for the Group’s company secretarial and listing
compliance matters. Mr. Lo is a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong, holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws in the Peking
University, the PRC and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has over 26 years' experience in
finance, accounting and company secretarial practice.
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Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted
by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board
of Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of
strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2009, there were nine members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, two other Executive Directors,
two Non- Executive Directors (“NED") and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his’/her own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independence to the Group.

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’'s primary purpose is to set
and review the overall strategic development of the Group and to
oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’
value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The Board met five times during the year and the Directors’
attendance is shown in the table on page 32. The NED and INEDs
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in carrying out their functions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERBE (2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the Code of Best Practice set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr KO, Jim-Chen and Mr Chan, Joen-
Ray, all independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr Chao, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the
Committee his valuable experience in reviewing financial statements
and evaluating significant control and financial issues of the Group
who among themselves posses a wealth of management experience
in the accounting profession, commercial and legal sectors. During
the year, the Audit Committee met 3 times.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:—

(i)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before
they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditors;

(iii)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls

and risk management systems;

(v)  to review the Group’'s financial and accounting policies and
practice;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and

(vii) to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of
the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2009 prior to recommending them
to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (2)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in January
2006. Its terms of reference are summarized as follows:

(i) To make recommendations with respect to the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company for approval by the Board,;

(i) To review the remuneration package and recommend salaries,
bonuses, including the incentive awards for Directors and the
senior management; and

(iii)  To administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company's share option scheme.

The remuneration committee annually sets out its recommendation
on the remuneration package of the Executive Directors. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2009, the remuneration committee
has reviewed and recommended to the Board the salaries and
bonuses of the Executive Directors and the senior management.

In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key employees
serving for the Group, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme in 2003. Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons
to obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus to rewards
to the participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in note 30
to the accounts and details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are set
out in the Report of Director and note 30 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in April 2008
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of Directors, structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure fair and transparent procedures for the appointment
and reappointment of Directors to the Board. There being no
meetings be held by the nomination committee during the year.

FHEAE
ARBAN-ZZFERNF-ARUFTNER S 2R
REFE ML T

(i) BMEARFATEERSREIEAB Z
REHEBER USRKEZGHE:

(i) BHREELEREBABZFHHAES X
MEE EARERBRLER:

(i) BEEREEAQNRZBBRES -

YFHMZEeEFREAVNTESFNESZ
BE-NEBEE_ZFTTAFT_A=1+—"HLMK
FE FHZESCERNTEETRERERE
ZEHEMRIEA TMEFSIREEER -

REE BRERABEASEHRBZITBRARR
FTERE ARAR_EZ=FRABRE
g ZFHEAHEEAERABRAERSARRZ
PRt A ME RAREEBRINELER
22 HEEREER-

EEMERBIHFBHERKBMEI0 - M=-F
ZFBEREAECFRERETERE LY
BRI T30 ©

REZE®

ARBAR-_ZEZNFOAXIREZES BE
ERERZEEST EFERE  ABRRAKA
EEeRIESR UBREFSEEZEZZERE
HEERFRAFRAZARE FRARKZESY

ol
mEBITEE -

Annual Report 2009 3% 31



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.

RE

AEERBESERRBRIELEE KT MES
1598 0 BRERPR 75 1 B - LA REAR 8 ST A P AR R
MR ER B AR ST AR

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE -4 §idi g GE
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
EExg BEREEY FMEES
Number of Meetings BRRE (5) (3) (1)
Executive directors HITES
Yang, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) SR (FE) 5 N/AT3E 1
Yang, Cheng 5 I1E 5 N/ATiE N/ATE
Yang, Kun-Hsiang (CEO) T IRRE (7T AR 5 3 N/AAS 4 F
Yang, Chen-Wen BR X 5 N/AT 3@ A N/AT i@ A
Non-executive director FHITES
Huang, Ching-Jung B 5 2 N/AAN 3
Chou, Szu-cheng I5kEE 5 N/AZ 3 N/AZ 3 FA
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTESE
Chao, Pei-Hong =R/ 5 3 1
Ko, Jim-Chen & 18 5 3 1
Chan, Joen-Ray Bk 83 5 3 1
INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION WIwmR

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
AND THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
Code of Best Practice, as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report. The
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year
20009.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (2)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the directors (the “Code”). Having made specific
enquiry, the Company confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Code.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate of approximately
US$332,000 to the external auditor for their services including audit
and non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities
of the external auditor to the shareholders are set out on pages 47
and 48.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2009 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 52 to 53.

An interim dividend of 0.273 US cents per share was declared and
paid to the shareholders during the year under review. The Board
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.317 US cents
per share, totalling US4,840,000 (2008: nil) for the year ended 31
December, 2009. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forecoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be
paid in cash on or about 18 June 2010 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 4 June
2010.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 14 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December, 2009, the Company’s share premium reserve of
approximately US$194,098,000 (subject to the Cayman Companies
Law and the articles of association of the Company) and retained
earnings of approximately US$16,490,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December, 2009, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's shares.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 15 to the accounts.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

BEEERE (8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its five largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its
goods and services to its five largest customers.

At no time during the year, did a director, an associate of a director
or any shareholder of the Company, which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, have an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Yang, Cheng

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Yang, Chen-Wen

Non-executive Directors
Huang, Ching-Jung
Chou, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chao, Pei-Hong

Ko, Jim-Chen

Chen, Joen-Ray

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng and Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All such Directors being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 28.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

BEEERE (8

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(a)

As at 31 December, 2009, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:—
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Interests in shares

RIRAD Pz S

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company

Name ordinary shares HERATE BT

£ ZER™E RHABE DL

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung 169,730,196 11.15%
15 BRI S (Note 1)
(H5E1)

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung 200,000 0.01%

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong 500,000 0.03%

IR R E
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Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung's interest in shares was held in the following
capacities:—
Capacity 514

B

1. BHEEREUATIGOIHAERDES:

Number of

ordinary shares
ZEREE

Interest of company controlled

by him

* Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power of
King International Limited (“King International”) and King
International is the holder of such 169,730,196 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

RIZERHE SR RS 2
NEP A

169,730,196 *

* B EE B RETE LT TE
King International Limited ([King
International | ) BB =5 2 — MR =R -
MKing International 3% #169,730,196
AP 2 A A

REXFBEREN R-FTTAF+_A=1—
B BMEARRAEFTIRHTRAEREARALR
HAAAABOEE (E& &5 LB GRAIEXV
B Z Bt - ARBAR I R BT R SRR
REAQBRBEESFLBAEEPEXVEET R ES
DEMEMERRBI LB ZEMERIRE
(BRERIEE S LIS G0 A BRSO R AR
CEREBZEDERAR) ROREZFFLHAE
BB 52352 B I A KR Pritt 2 B s it M2 (E
AERSORR  RORBETRAME 2 LA
AEFETEFRHINFRETUAMNEARA
KB 32 i 2 AR R s SR B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 June, 2003, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme were approved by shareholders under which the
Directors may, at their discretion, offer any employee (including
any executive director of the Company) of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated in the two schemes.

Options to subscribe for 29,770,000 shares had been granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group on 13 June, 2003 under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further options can be, or have
been, granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme from 27 June,
2003, the date of listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. As at
31 December 2009, there was no share option outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2009, no option had been granted or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Yang, Kun-
Hsiang and Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years.
Such service agreements may continue thereafter unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Each of Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung and Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
one year. Such service agreements may continue thereafter unless
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party
following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years and both parties may upon or
before the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as
the case may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the
service agreement for another year.
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Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen has not entered into service contract with the
Company, and has no fixed term of service with the Company but
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

Mr Chen, Joen-Ray has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year and both parties may upon or before
the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as the case
may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the service
contract for another year.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Taiwan Vedan Enterprise Corporation
(“Taiwan Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December, 2009, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

AR AW MEARRBFILRIEE L) BAR
A IR T S E AR A H - MEISAR B AN 1~ R AR A
BRAMNBRRBFAG LRFERENESRE
£

REmALECEARRBIT LA —FZREA
#omETARRARERETAEELRR (R
FIERTE ) B BTAEE S AR B ERRB
BHR—F-

EREBRBFAG LRER EFWEEAR
RAFUARAE—FATMERE OEEHER
SI) BI ST B 2 AR 7% 1hh 5 o

EEMERCahER

B EXFRPLZ RIBAASN X EEEHEFAAR
REIREERMEAR BT MY RNEEE
BEEAREBZANTHEE A ER -

FEX 5

HEOERACEROGERIE ([BEKFZ]) 2
x5

HEZTZNF+ _A=1+—HILEFE KXAQF
HETERREEEAL GEKRAETTIIR
7 MzEXZBRAET EMRAE14AE R
BRAEREZFHERERS

Note US$'000
B 5 FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A AEEBRSEEER (i) 3,590
B.  Technological support fee paid to Tung B MESBEBEIEXZBRMHAER (if) 1,641
Hai Fermentation Industrial Co. Ltd. RNAI KRB ERS A
and Taiwan Vedan EMEEE
C.  Agency commission received from C. MaERTERRERA: (iii) 103

Taiwan Vedan
Agency commission paid to
Taiwan Vedan

AeERAXNRERS

(iii) -
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Notes:

(i)

40

The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),
MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
23 December 2008, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2009
to 31 December 2011 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At that time, the
Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of sales of
the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$1,700,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2011. The parties entered into a supplemental agreement
on 29 April 2009 to increase the annual cap under the Taiwan Sales
Agreement to US$4,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ending 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011. The Directors believe that
the sale of goods to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan
Sales Agreement will generate additional income to the Group.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 23 December 2008, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term
of one year from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the agreement will be around or may exceed US$1,700,000 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2009. However, it was agreed
by the Company and Taiwan Vedan that the annual total aggregate
amount of service fee payable by the Group shall be subject to a cap of
US$1,700,000 as a support extended by Taiwan Vedan to the Group.
The Directors believe that the technological support from the Taiwan
Vedan Group will benefit the Group’s future business developments.
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(iii)  Each of Taiwan Vedan and the Company has been acting as the sole
and exclusive agent of the other party to sell, distribute, supply and/
or provide the products that are produced or proposed to be produced
by the Group from time to time to the customers in Vietnam, ASEAN

On 31

December 2008, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an

countries and the PRC or in Taiwan (as the case may be).

agreement in respect of such transactions (“Agency Agreement”) for
a term of three years from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011.
At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total
aggregate amount of commission to be received by each of the Group
and the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum cap of
US$150,000 and US$80,000 for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2011. The Directors believe that the Group will continue
to benefit from the transactions as the Group will receive additional
commission income, and, it will also continue to benefit from the
transactions in respect of additional sales to customers in Taiwan which
may not be satisfied by the production capacity of, or the available

products from, the Taiwan Vedan Group.

Transactions with Shandong Xue Hua Bio-chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Xue Hua")

For the year ended 31 December, 2009, the subsidiaries of the
Company entered into various transactions with Xue Hua, which
constituted continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that such transactions will
provide cost benefits to the Group for its GA and MSG manufacturing
businesses.

On 22 December, 2005, Ordino Investments Pte Ltd (“Ordino”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Xue Hua entered into
a joint venture contract to set up a joint venture company, Shandong
Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“JV Company”) in the PRC.
Upon the establishment of the JV Company, the JV Company
becomes a 70% non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xue Hua, which holds 30% of the equity interest in the JV Company,
becomes a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

iy AEKARAR Txaﬁﬁ%—ﬁzm—ﬁ%
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Set out below is a table summarising the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions with Xue Hua as at 31 December 2009
which are subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

TRELABE_FTZNFT _A=+—HEZE
TEZEEET EMRBEUAT RS NERE
UBRRIEREZ TN ERRBERERS

Note RMB'000

B 7 AREEF T

A. Purchase of certain raw materials A BIEAEGERRIHESE TR (i) 12,980
by the JV Company from Xue Hua Mkt

Notes:

(i) On 28 December, 2005, Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered
into an agreement in respect of the supply of certain raw materials
("Raw Materials”) by Xue Hua to the JV Company. On 31 December
2006, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the agreement, as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement, will be referred to as the “Original Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement”) to revise certain terms of the agreement. On 23
December 2008, Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered into an
agreement to renew the Original Raw Materials Purchase Agreement
on substantially the same terms and for a term of three years from 28
December 2008 to 27 December 2011 (with the JV Company’s right
to renew for a successive term of three years each until the end of
the term of the JV Company subject to compliance with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules) (“Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the
annual total aggregate amount of the raw materials to be purchased
by the JV Company from Xue Hua will not exceed the maximum cap
of RMB200,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2011.

Under the Raw Materials Purchase Agreement, Xue Hua will
guarantee to the JV Company that in the event of the GA products
produced by the JV Company utilising the Raw Materials reaching
25,000 tonnes per annum, the lower of (a) the average profit
before tax for each tonne of such GA products will be not less than
RMB450; or (b) the annual profit before tax for such GA products
produced will reach RMB11,470,000, and Xue Hua will reimburse the
shortfall to the JV Company for a period, up to a maximum term of
5 years from 1 May 2006 to 30 April 2011 or when an amount of
RMB71,420,000 (which includes the service fees payable by Xue Hua
to Ordino under a technology services agreement) or RMB60,570,000
(which excludes the service fees payable under such technology
services agreement) is reached, whichever is earlier.
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Pursuant to the Raw Materials Purchase Agreement, Xue Hua is
entitled to claim reasonable damages from the JV Company in case
of the JV Company sells products to the Group at a price level lower
than the then average selling price available from Xue Hua of a
comparable product.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 and confirmed that:

(a)  Such transactions were:
(i)  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms; which were
no less favourable than those available to or from
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole;

(b) the aggregate amount for each of the above transactions
has not exceeded the relevant caps disclosed in previous
announcements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December, 2009, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO:

FERFRESREHZRE

BEMEZERARARGTRASMA R-F
ZNFT A=+ BREXAEBESESEHA

RAEZRBITHRABRER AR -

IATALER

ARRBRDRBEROTHEBEREES LRE
GEBIEXVELFE2 R 30 B0 2 A& AR AR R AR
BEngmIAR AR RRREEZLAE
EBIE336MGMFEESLMANERIAE

Percentage of
issued shares

of the Company

Name Number of ordinary shares o N =)

8 ZERHE BITROGESL

Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") 460,237,609 30.22%
(Note 1)
(PR3ET)

Taiwan Vedan 460,237,609 30.22%
BEKS (Note 1)
(KI=ET)

King International Limited 169,730,196 11.15%
("King International”) (Note 2)
(FfF3E2)

Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited 127,297,646 8.36%
("Concord Worldwide") (Note 3)
(Mi5E3)

High Capital Investments Limited 127,297,646 8.36%
("High Capital”) (Note 4)
(KI=E4)
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Notes:

1. Taiwan Vedan is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than
one third of the voting power of Billion Power and is therefore taken to
be interested in these 460,237,609 shares held by Billion Power.

2. The capacity of King International in holding the 169,730,196 shares

was as beneficial owner.

3. The capacity of Concord Worldwide in holding the 127,297,646 shares

was as beneficial owner.

4. The capacity of High Capital in holding the 127,297,646 shares was as
beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, as at 31 December 2009, no other
person (not being a Director or chief executives of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Four Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung,
Yang, Cheng, Yang, Kun-Hsiang and Yang, Chen-Wen, were also
directors of the Group’s controlling shareholder, Taiwan Vedan. In
addition, Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng, Yang, Kun-Hsiang
and Yang, Chen-Wen indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent.,
9.89 percent., 6.18 percent., and 8.24 percent. interest in Taiwan
Vedan, respectively and they were therefore considered as having an
interest in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).
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Since Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiang and Yang, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. Yang, Kun-Hsiang
and Yang, Chen-Wan together with an independent management
team, the Directors are of the view that the management and the
operational functions of the Group are independent of and separate
from those of other members of the Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer
13 April 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B RS

PRICEAATERHOUSE COPERS

BORKESTMEBAT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 117, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 April 2010
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2009 —ZETZHE+—-HA=+—H

2009 2008
Note US$°000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx Fx=T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Land use rights 4 {5 B 6 6,472 6,609
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 7 189,577 183,672
Intangible assets mREE 8 16,178 17,540
Prepayment for property, plant and I ERN Y
equipment 2 AR RIE 1,103 4,400
Held-to-maturity financial assets HEZRIHZ
s EE 10 - 3,130
213,330 215,351
Current assets REBEE
Held-to-maturity financial assets REZIEZ
MIBEE 10 2,959 -
Trade receivables W E Z iR 11 26,937 28,878
Inventories FE 12 65,596 72,496
Amount due from a minority JE U BT &8 2 Al
shareholder of a subsidiary DB R R R RIE 1,288 1,370
Prepayments and other receivables T8~ 7R IE K H Ath
JE W R IR 7,849 6,098
Tax recoverable GIRqER 46 18
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIBEEED 13 39,614 36,286
144,289 145,146
Total assets EESAHE 357,619 360,497
EQUITY E=
Capital and reserves attributable to RABIRERE A
equity holders of the Company FEAERR A K
Share capital [N 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves &
— Proposed final dividend —EEARHRE 15, 26 4,840 =
— Others —Hfb 15 248,898 239,803
268,966 255,031
Minority interest in equity PN £l
DB R 2,685 2,879
Total equity fERBHE 271,651 257,910

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
HReEBEEEEXR®)

As at 31 December 2009 —ZEZHFE+—-HA=+—H

2009 2008
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Long-term bank borrowings RERITEE 17 16,222 7,552
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHARE 18 8,050 9,497
Long-term payable to a related party ERNBHREALTZ
REIRIA 34(c) 4,031 5,902
Provision for long service payment REAAR S © BB 1,119 1,133
29,422 24,084
Current liabilities FREBAE
Trade payables FERHE SR 16 13,043 14,335
Accruals and other payables EEAER R
H ) & 1~ 3R I8 12,428 13,660
Due to related parties ERBREALT
A 34(c) 2,043 2,000
Short-term bank borrowings EHERTTIEE 17 23,252 38,660
Current portion of long-term RESRITEE
bank borrowings BN ER =B 15 17 3,123 6,940
Tax payable FERT IR 2,657 2,908
56,546 78,503
Total liabilities =Rk R 85,968 102,587
Total equity and liabilities ERREEASH 357,619 360,497
Net current assets RBEEFRE 87,743 66,643
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAERE 301,073 281,994

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

HPBRREEEETSEMLH TIALTRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
R 1 3 HF

Director Director

BEFE EE

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
BEEEER

As at 31 December 2009 —ZETZHE+—-HA=+—H

2009 2008
Note US$'000 US$’000
B 5 FEx F=T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries, at cost HMBARKRE
(R A) 9 170,390 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary BT —FEHBAR
ZEHER 9 2,700 13,200
Intangible assets BREE 8 6,246 7,455
179,336 191,045
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries J7E L Bf BB X B ZR A 9 59,885 42,106
Prepayments and other receivables TEfTFRIB R EH A
JE W kIR 400 284
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 13 3,866 8,572
64,151 50,962
Total assets BEE 243,487 242,007
Capital and reserves attributable to RAFIRERF A
the equity holders of the Company FE(G AR A K (&
Share capital P& A% 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves ]
— Proposed final dividend —EEARERE 15, 26 4,840 =
— Others —Hfh 15 205,748 207,831
Total equity A 225,816 223,059
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability FRBEE
Long-term payable to a related party ENEHEEALZ
R EAFRIE 34(c) 4,031 5,902
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEtERREM
FEfERIE 3,035 1,547
Short-term bank borrowings — unsecured G HRITIEE
— 4 4 3 17 8,734 9,713
Due to a related party JERT B RE ALK 34(c) 1,871 1,786
13,640 13,046
Total liabilities BERE 17,671 18,948
Total equity and liabilities ERREEATE 243,487 242,007
Net current assets RBEEFEE 50,511 37,916
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERSE 229,847 228,961

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

MBRRECEEZTGEMRLH TIALTRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung

L 1ok ke
Director Director
EFE EFE

YANG, Kun-Hsiang

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

VYear ended 31 December 2009 HEZZTZNF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
Note US$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FTEx F=ET
Revenue gz 19 289,137 348,557
Cost of sales 5 KA 21 (217,805) (284,048)
Gross profit EA 71,332 64,509
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX 21 (14,452) (17,417)
Administrative expenses ITHHEX 21 (30,068) (24,333)
Environmental charges imposed by R BUR B 2
Vietnam government RIZAEREE A 22 - (7,729)
Other losses — net HihEE— 558 20 (2,937) (196)
Operating profit reERF 23,875 14,834
Finance income B A 747 2,267
Finance costs B S (1,594) (3,639)
Finance costs — net B BSE HH—FHE 23 (847) (1,372)
Profit before income tax K&t P15 B Al % A 23,028 13,462
Income tax expense FriS & F X 24 (5,234) (7,053)
Profit for the year NE [E s A 25 17,794 6,409
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LUT&AEERR,
(EB) :
Equity holders of the Company —RRAIRERE A 17,983 8,403
Minority interest — DB ER (189) (1,994)
17,794 6,409
Earnings per share from profit RERNARR B RAE
attributable to the equity holders of BEABGRNZ
the Company during the year FRAF
Basic earnings per share BRERER
(expressed in US cents) (BAEALE) 27 1.18 0.55
Diluted earnings per share SRBHEER
(expressed in US cents) (AZEALF) 27 1.18 0.55
Dividends 8= 26 8,992 4,644

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ReETEWmEE

Year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZTZNF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx F=ET
Profit for the year KEERF 17,794 6,409
Other comprehensive income Ht 2 mE KA
Currency translation differences N =5 15 99 2,861
Total comprehensive income AEEXEBALE
for the year 17,893 9,270
Total comprehensive income UTE&FEGMEZE
attributable to: WA
— Equity holders of the Company —AATRERAEA 18,087 10,976
— Minority interest —DERRER (194) (1,706)
Total comprehensive income AEEXEKRALE
for the year 17,893 9,270

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FRES6ENTREMM TN BRAS M RRN—AD -

Annual Report 2009 £3% 53



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZE-—ZZTNF+-_A=+—RHILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARREREARLS
Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserve earnings interest Total
SHRR
RA R4 EE ERfEE AhtRE REEF E& @t
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TET TEL TEn TET TEL S
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZZEZ\E-A-Hz&R 15,228 47,358 7,631 79,994 102,920 4,585 257,716
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEERFH,/ (BE) = - = = 8,403 (1,994) 6,409
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2 ERA -
Currency translation differences EXZ® - - 2,573 - - 288 2,861
Total comprehensive income LNk - - 2,573 - 8,403 (1,706) 9,270
Total transactions with owners HEBAZERHE
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - (9,076) - (9,076)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-ZBZNF+ZA=+-HZ
<123 15,228 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 2,879 257,910
Balance at 1 January 2009 RZZENF-—A—-AZ&H% 15,228 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 2,879 257,910
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERFH,/ (BE) = = = - 17,983 (189) 17,794
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2 ERA -
Currency translation differences EXZ® - - 104 - - (5) 99
Total comprehensive income LNk - - 104 - 17,983 (194) 17,893
Total transactions with owners HEBAZERHE
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - (4,152) - (4,152)
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+-A=+-H2Z
<323 15,228 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 2,685 271,651

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNES6ENTENMETI BT A M s mR N — &b -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERIMER

Year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZTZNF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
Note UsS$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx F=T
Cash flows from operating activities REXBEEZ
BeRE
Cash generated from operations ¥BEECRS 31 61,430 48,904
Interest paid B FE (524) (1,018)
Income taxes paid EATATEHE (6.960) (5,390)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZ
activities We 53,946 42,496
Cash flows from investing activities RETZHEEZ
BeERhE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - -WER
equipment R A 7 (37,478) (15,093)
Long-term prepayment of property, M BRE &R
plant and equipment Z REITERIE 3,297 (4,400)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEWE HER
plant and equipment KA FTRRIA 31 44 59
Purchases of intangible assets WimpEE (88) (1,009)
Interest received from held-to-maturity BURFBEEIEH
financial assets WBEEZHE 405 410
Net cash used in investing activities ‘EESFIARBR ST (33,820) (20,033)
Cash flows from financing activities METHEEZ
RERE
Dividends paid EERPES (4,152) (9,076)
Net change in short-term bank HHIRITEEZS
borrowings HER (15,408) 19,715
Proceeds from long-term bank RERITEBEEMS
borrowings FRIE 8,670 -
Repayment of long-term bank BERARITEE
borrowings (3,817) (11,964)
Repayment of long-term payable BEEERKTEE
to Vedan Enterprise Corporation R AR A A
(“Taiwan Vedan") (re&%A)Z
R EAE A 5R0E (2,145) (2,145)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMAR
R (16,852) (3,470)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR& K384 S E Wi
pilIpE 3,274 18,993
Cash and cash equivalents RENzRERRE
at beginning of year ZLEY 13 36,286 17,324
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and RekReZEEY
cash equivalents W (E18) 54 (31
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREER
at end of year REZEEY 13 39,614 36,286

The notes on pages 56 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RS HR AR M A

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of foods,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George Town P.O. Box
2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollar (“US$"”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRIMEE (20

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2009.

o HKAS 1 (revised), 'Presentation of financial
statements’- The revised standard prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that
is ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement
of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes
in equity’ to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity. All ‘non-owner changes in
equity’ are required to be shown in a performance
statement.

Entities can choose whether to present one
performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the
income statement and statement of comprehensive
income).

The Group has elected to present two statements:
an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the revised
disclosure requirements.

o HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’. It requires
an entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or
sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will
be removed. The adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised) has
no significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’- HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14, ‘Segment reporting’. It requires a
‘management approach’ under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Goodwill is allocated by management to groups of
cash-generating units at a segment level. There is
no change in reportable segments. There has been
no impact on the measurement of the Group's
assets and liabilities.

Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
disclosures’- The amendment increases the
disclosure requirements about fair value
measurement and amends the disclosure about
liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a
three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement
disclosures about financial instruments and requires
some specific quantitative disclosures for those
instruments classified in the lowest level in the
hierarchy. These disclosures will help to improve
comparability between entities about the effects
of fair value measurements. In addition, the
amendment clarifies and enhances the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity
risk primarily requiring a separate liquidity risk
analysis for derivative and non-derivative financial
liabilities. It also requires a maturity analysis for
financial assets where the information is needed to
understand the nature and context of liquidity risk.
The Group makes additional relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt B R R B RE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
The following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for

the financial year beginning 1 January 2009, but do not

have significant financial impact to the Group.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
(Amendment)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Amendment)

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants
(Amendment) and Disclosure of Government

Assistance

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
(Amendment) Financial Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
(Amendment)

HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
(Amendment) Hyperinflationary Economies

HKAS 31 Interest in Joint Venture
(Amendment)

HKAS 32 and Puttable Financial Instruments and
HKAS 1 Obligations
(Amendment)

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
(Amendment)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BB R R M EE ()

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 38
(Amendment)

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKAS 41
(Amendment)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

Intangible Assets

Financial instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

Agriculture

Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt B R R B RE ()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
The following new standards, amendment/revisions to
standard and interpretations have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2009 and have not been early adopted.

FESHHRBE (1)
21 mBEEE (F)

REEWEIBFRAUTERME
R-FZANF A BRHKRZMEK
FRE W ARERZ# AR R ZEFT
AT kR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

KT AR Z%E

RHENETHEEXR

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
BB G ERFE245 (KIEFT) PN TR —T——%—H—H
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009

Statements

BRI ERE275 (KIEFT) e RB LB HREK —ZEENFLA—H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issue 1 January 2010
BB G ERIE325 (BFTA) A 48 —E-TF—-H—H
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedge Items 1 July 2009
BB G ERIE395% (BFTA) SEREIHIAR —EZNFLHA—HR
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs 1 July 2009
EREMBRMEENEIR (KER]) BREMNEBH GRS ER —TENFLHA—H

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB EHREERFE15H (BFTA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BRI BMERERIFE25 (BFTA)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BB IWE AR FE35 (LEET)

HKFRS 9

BN GE R I

Amendment to
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

5% (BB BREREEES)
—2EE 145 (BFTAR)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

5% (BRMBHREREBES
—ZEE1TR

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

5% (BB BREREEZES)
—ZEZ185%

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

53

)

BE (BARMBHREREZES)
—REE195%

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

BIRRAENEINR R

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transaction

SEURSEE RN SERNN RS

1 January 2010

—2— 25— H—H
1 January 2010

—2-FF-A—A

Business Combinations 1 July 2009
PEAG —EENFLA—H
Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
SHIA —ET—=%—H—H

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

1 January 2011

RIEE® ERk 2 BINKRIE —T——%—H—H
Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
M#EEADKIFREEE —ZEZAFLH—H
Transfer of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009
BFEECEE —ZEZNFLHA—H
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1 July 2010
Equity Instruments
NIRRT AEECRARE —E-FTFLH—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new standards,
amendment/revisions to standards and interpretations.
The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and presentation of the financial statements will result.

In addition, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has also published a number of amendments
for the existing standards under its annual improvement
project. These amendments are not expected to have a
significant financial impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement (Note 2.6).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B R R B RE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(@)  Subsidiaries (continued)
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions with minority interests
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interest as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interest
result in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Purchases from minority interest result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BF 75 R 2R MY RE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within other losses
- net.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-
for-sale reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5-8 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other losses — net, in the income
statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

66  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bkf3EIES (ZR) ARAT

2

FESHBRBE (18)
25 YME- -BERSRE

ME - BB R&RE (EZITERKRIN)
BERABRFITE R R REE
18718k - EL R A B EEARNKE
HEMMAX-

= HIR B A B 2 R R M & AT BE
BRANREE Bagr st E8IRA
ZRAE - TR BEIRZKABEA
BEZRAEXERAR - BELE
E(WER) mEBEEKREE AE
BEOMERHR AT BER  FAHE
AEERREER  HREEZWIK
HIR A R E R A S8

ME - BEMRRENHFELNRER
FHEETERFHSERA#EE
HepEW T

- U 20-504F
—  BEKE 10-204F
- BWRAEZEK

HiEE&E 5-84F
- "= 5-84F

BEZHRERAERFHANSE
ERTUEREBARE (MER) -

11 B 2 AR T (B 8 ik &1 49 P IR [ SRR
AR - BIE 2 6 AR ENE 5 32 2 BB
EHAWREIREE (HE2.7) -

H & Z B 515 B TS SO E iR
EEELLBMERE - L HI AR A
R AHEMEBEFE

ERTREEATHKETRHEEN
BRI - UERASR RFHRERBEA
R-ERIRTMEFE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRIMEE (20

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(©)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary or business at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating
segment.

Trademarks, brand names and licences

Separately acquired trademarks, brand names and
licences and brand names are shown at historical
cost less accumulated impairment. Trademarks,
brand names and licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks, brand names and licences over their
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and other
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.8.1. Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B R R B RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial assets (continued)
2.8.1. Classification (continued)

(i)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise trade and
other receivables (Note 2.10), amount due
from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
loan to a subsidiary and amounts due from
subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included
in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the
balance sheet date, which are classified as
current assets.

2.8.2. Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Financial assets (continued)

2.8.3 Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Spare parts and consumables are included within
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted
average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement within selling and
marketing costs. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against selling and marketing
costs in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B R R B RE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.12 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

2.16 Employee Benefits

(a)  Pension obligations
The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally
held in independently administered funds. The
Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R R RMEE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to their present value.

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.17 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net
of value-added tax, return and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B RE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

2.18

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

Sales of electricity

Sales of electricity are recognised based on units
of electricity sold as recorded by meters during the
year.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors
wherever appropriate. Dividend proposed or declared
after the balance sheet date are disclosed as a post
balance sheet event and are not recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow
and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board establishes written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B RE ()

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

At 31 December 2009, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 1% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$226,000 (2008:US$237,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of Vietnam Dong-
denominated trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest-rate risk.

At 31 December 2009, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$72,000 (2008: US$243,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary, other
receivables as well as held to maturity financial
assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group has policies to
assess the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limit is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary and prepayments and
other receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheets represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these financial
assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2008 and 2009, all
the bank balances as detailed in note 13 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.

For held to maturity financial assets, the Group’s
only investment is the bond issued by Dong Nai
Province Peoples Committee of Vietnam, which is a
government department. Management believes that
the credit risk for this balance to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2009, the amount
due from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all
the balance is within credit period, management
are of opinion that the receivable from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2008 and 2009.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 13) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R 2R B AE ()
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERGEE ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBREBEZE (H&)
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s THRBIREEBES LI B AR
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based THES T ASEE kAR AIREBR
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the BB S B - RREPRE
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the ZERARERHRTRRERE -

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—-FR —FEWE WEERLF BBRF &t

US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET T TET

Group rEE
At 31 December 2009 R=-ZThF+-A=1+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 24,538 600 21,200 = 46,338
Trade payables [ERE 58K 8,012 - - - 8,012
Long-term payable to ~ ENEEEALZ

a related party REHE 2,145 2,145 2,166 - 6,456
Other payables H A FE 14 508 12,428 - - = 12,428
Due to related parties ~ FE{S B BE A T HE 172 = = = 172
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF+_A=+—H
Bank borrowings BITEE 48,482 8,006 - = 56,488
Trade payables ERE 58K 10,156 - - - 10,156
Long-term payable to ~ ENAEEALY

a related party REFIE 2,145 2,145 4,311 = 8,601
Other payables H A & 14 508 13,660 = = = 13,660
Due to related parties N ABEALFUE 214 - - - 214
Company NG
At 31 December 2009 HR=ZFhF+=-A=1+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 8,970 - - - 8,970
Long-term payable to  ENBEEALY

a related party REFIE 2,145 2,145 2,166 = 6,456
At 31 December 2008 HR=-ZTNF+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,216 = = - 10,216
Long-term payable to ~ ENEEEALZ

a related party REFE 2,145 2,145 4,311 - 8,601
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by equity
holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:
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ZNFAREREER B0 DHEFE
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FER_FFENF+-_A=+—HZ

BEBBLEENT:
Group
rEE
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx Fx=T
Total borrowings (Note 17) mrask (MisE17) 42,597 53,152
Equity holders’ equity (including Hx%ﬁﬁ/\Zﬁ% i
minority interest in equity) (BIEI AR 2
DB RER) 271,651 257,910
Gearing ratio BEARBLX 16% 21%

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable. The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2009
resulted primarily from a decrease in bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREER(H)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment, land use rights and
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgement
and estimates.

3.3 AFEME
AEBEREEREEZHRARENE
5 8RR 2 BR T ERURE B R 1R 5
HAFE-HABEESRABZAF
B DRARERESR TARKH
MEMEFBRKRANRSREM
fl&t e

EES AR R

ET R A B & T ENR R L &5 M E b E
RETHE BRESBATHERAE
ZARREMIER

AREBE G ARRMEL A RERR - RIBEH
EE BUESHZETHEAHEE D EAH
ERFRESH - TXwE T —HRFE
NEENBBEZEREEXNERARLZS
BB Er RERE& -

(a) FEERMENMEE
NEBEFHRBH 2 7N
STBRKETE AR BETRERT
e MBEBIR S B M AR E S8 -
AR AEEAE -t EBIRHA
REBEYARREBARRIELHE (HE
8) e

(b) M= BERRE TiERAREMNE
MEENMHERE
BEAEDRBTIRENSREARLED
RO ARRKEHME BE
R&ME - HE LB E EE R
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and intangible assets
(continued)

During the year, management made a provision on its
property, plant and equipment in Vietnam based on a
five-year cash flow forecast. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use post-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate used in the cash flow forecast is 10%.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives
are vary with previously estimated. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI ()

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EEgiAstRAEE)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income tax

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors. The Directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that
are used to make strategic decisions. These reports include
segment revenue, segment assets and capital expenditures.

The chief operating decision-makers consider the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

Since the Group is mainly engaged in manufacturing and
selling of MSG products in which the gross profit would not
differentiate much in geographical location, the chief operating
decision makers mainly assess the performance based on
revenue derived by each geographical segment. Accordingly,
the segment performance is restricted to revenue information.

In 2009 and 2008, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group's
total revenue.

(d) ESFREHREEZEREHR (&)
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B 3 R B EE ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEE(E)

(i) Segment revenue (i) DEBUkz=E
2009 2008
Us$‘000 Us$’000
FErx FET
Vietnam A= 150,562 148,860
The PRC A 54,697 57,229
Japan =[N 56,370 73,523
Taiwan = 6,363 10,881
ASEAN countries (other than Vietnam) RBEBER (T8 #EHE) 14,211 36,956
Other regions H b b [ 6,934 21,108
289,137 348,557

(ii) Capital expenditures (i) BEAXXZH
2009 2008
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx SEESTT
Vietnam A 37,279 15,227
The PRC s 287 875
37,566 16,102

Capital expenditures are allocated based on where the
assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of land use
rights, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions
through business combinations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEWEHE (1F)
(iii) Total assets (iii) #EE

2009 2008
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE=T
Vietnam 2] 286,144 280,299
The PRC A 67,121 71,255
Hong Kong BE 3,344 8,448
Taiwan =9 946 431
Singapore Hran 64 64
357,619 360,497

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are
located.

6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

BEETIRIBEEEMMAE MDA

T ERE-FKE
AEERLEREZEREEEEOZ
BHER HEEFESNET:

2009 2008
Uss$'000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Held outside Hong Kong EBBAINEE

Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERT+FZELY 6,472 6,609
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FX5t FET
Beginning of the year F4 6,609 6,320
Exchange difference BN ZER 7 434

Amortisation of prepaid operating EEMNTEHER 2 #H
lease payment (144) (145)
End of the year F1x 6,472 6,609

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Mao Tai Foods
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shanghai Vedan
Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”) and Shandong Vedan
Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Snowflake"),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have been
granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority for 50
years, which expire in 2042, 2055 and 2056 respectively.

HARENTHERAENS = FARFE
R REENHBAREERM (EM)E
Al ([EFXE]) EEBRSEERR
AR([EBRSD RILERAZILEE:?
BRAR([WREI]) BEEEHEERE
FTAHATENLHERE 2R _Z
W —ETRhAFRZZTERAAFEM°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MR ()
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Office
equipment
and other
fixed assets
Construction Plant and Motor  HMAZERE
in progress Properties machinery vehicles REM Total
ERIR nE  BERKHR AE EEEE A&
usD'000 usD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 usD'000
xR TERT TExT Tx=r TET TET
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEN5-A-H
Cost A 7,617 83,127 347,239 8,518 30,621 477,122
Accumulated depreciation 2RME - (36,010) (210,901) (6,465) (25,898) (279,274)
Net book amount REEE 7,617 47,117 136,338 2,053 4,723 197,848
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZENF
+t-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONRAFE 7,617 47117 136,338 2,053 4,723 197,848
Exchange differences EHRESE 7 780 1,436 36 27 2,286
Additions NE 13,994 67 473 336 223 15,093
Transfer L (8,551) 3,901 4,543 31 76 =
Disposals HE - (2) (12) (54) (26) (94)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (K1) = (4,129) (23,784) (510) (884) (29,307)
Impairment loss REER = (141) (2,009) - ) (2,154)
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 13,067 47,593 116,985 1,892 4,135 183,672
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=1+—-H
Cost A 13,067 88,002 354,138 8,543 30,886 494,636
Accumulated depreciation Z2RME - (40,268) (235,144) (6,651) (26,747) (308,810)
Accumulated impairment A = (141) (2,009) - @ (2,154)
Net book amount HEEE 13,067 47,593 116,985 1,892 4,135 183,672
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZEINF
tZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 13,067 47,593 116,985 1,892 4,135 183,672
Exchange differences [Ex =5 = 12 19 (1) 1 31
Additions NE 36,614 73 243 230 318 37,478
Transfer L (37,548) 13,139 23,507 288 614 -
Disposals HE - - (42) 43) 3) (88)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (Fi21) - @,311) (22,488) (450) (834) (28,083)
Impairment loss REEE = (923) (2,492) = (18) (3.433)
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF+ZA=1+—-H
Cost e 12,133 101,228 377,713 8,706 31,772 531,552
Accumulated depreciation 2RME - (44,581) (257,480) (6,790) (27,537) (336,388)
Accumulated impairment 2R E - (1,064) (4,501) - 22) (5,587)
Net book amount BEZE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
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B B R R M RE ()

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group is pledged
as security for the Group’s short-term and long-term bank

borrowings as follows:

¥ BERRM ()

REBAETHE  BERREEER A
PISAEENEHRERBARTEESNT

2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Net book value of pledged property, EEEME -BEREKE
plant and equipment (Note 35) BREF(E (MiFE35) 14,206 19,315

Depreciation expense of US$23,536,000 (2008: US$27,868,000)
has been charged in cost of sales, US$55,000 (2008: US$50,000)
in selling and distribution expenses and US$4,492,000 (2008:
US$1,389,000) in administrative expenses.

T8 ¥ 123,536,000 T (ZEE N\ F:

27,868,000% T ) 55,0005 7T (ZZ2F)\
£ :50,0003 7T ) #14,492,000% 7t (=&
= )\ 4 : 1,389,000k ) E R EHE KA

HE R A RITER X R HIR o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 EiEE
Group Company
A&E ARDH
Software
Goodwill  and licence Brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE EBHERER i jE L A&t BE
TEx TExT TET T=n T=n TEx
At 1 January 2008 RZZENF-A—-H
Cost KA 7,822 414 1,142 12,089 21,467 12,089
Accumulated amortisation 2B (148) (139) (228) (3,425) (3,940) (3,425)
Net book amount BEHEE 7,674 275 914 8,664 17,527 8,664
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-TT)\F
TZA=t-BLEFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 7,674 275 914 8,664 17,527 8,664
Exchange differences EREE 478 - - - 478 -
Additions NE = 1,009 - - 1,009 -
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BRI % (Ha21) - (151) (114) (1,209) (1,474) (1,209)
Closing net book amount ERE@FE 8,152 1,133 800 7,455 17,540 7,455
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F+=A=1+—H
Cost A 8,310 1,423 1,142 12,089 22,964 12,089
Accumulated amortisation RS (158) (290) (342) (4,634) (5,424) (4,634)
Net book amount REFE 8,152 1,133 800 7,455 17,540 7,455
Year ended 31 December 2009 HEZTZTNF
TZA=+—RLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,152 1,133 800 7,455 17,540 7,455
Exchange differences EHESE 7 - - - 7 =
Additions NE - 88 - - 88 -
Amortisation charge (Note 21) HEET (K1) - (134) (114) (1,209) (1,457) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
At 31 December 2009 RZZZNF+ZA=1+—H
Cost KA 8,317 1,51 1,142 12,089 23,059 12,089
Accumulated amortisation RS (158) (424) (456) (5,843) (6,881) (5,843)
Net book amount REFE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BRI ATRAS
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Bt 75 R R B RE ()

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 8

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to operating segment.

EmEERE ()

R E R

AEBERARELED A RATHBR 2 HRIRE
THEUSEEE-

The PRC Vietnam
e Hra
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
RS R Tk ¥ 2 &5t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET F=ET FET
At 31 December 2009 —EENFF+=ZA=+—8H 7,429 730 8,159
At 31 December 2008 —EEN\F+=-_A=+—H 7,422 730 8,152

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use five-year
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. Cash flows beyond the budget period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

REBReEM 2B SR IIRERER
AH ZEAEENERBHE 2 M BTE
HERAAIFRERERAET - BHRE
HeReRnEER TG ERRER-

RUGtEEREEZEERR

2009 2008

EFI%
kS

Gross margin
Discount rate

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations for the market development.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant operating segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the carrying amounts to
exceed its recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOAN TO 9
A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

HNBLARARE FMMBLAFERR
BEHEATRE-ELQF

2009 2008

uUss$‘000 Us$'000

FEx F=T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEET D (RAKAN) 170,390 170,390

The long-term loan granted to a subsidiary is unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable on 14 March
2011. The carrying value of loan to a subsidiary approximates

its fair value.

Except for US$10,500,000, which is a short-term loan to a
subsidiary and is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in
US$ and repayable on 31 July 2010, the amounts due from
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, denominated in US$
and repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2009:

BT —HMBARZRMERDEER .
REUETHERAR-_T——F=A
THOREE -M—RMEARERZEE

BEROEAFE.

BREERR 28 UETFERAERZ-ET
—ZTF+HA=+—HE#&E 210,500,000%
TR THBAREHERIN ERKHEA
AIREAEER A EARNUEITFE "

ARESRESR-

THAR-_BEAF+-_A=1+—HHZE

ZHBAF:

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued/paid up
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name AMA L ER place of operation BRT/HR held
£ EEERER TEXBREELY RAFF1E FEES
Directly held:
BERR
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in Hong Kong us$100 100%
("BVI") EBBREER Ordinary shares
EERUHE 1005 7T & B
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong us$100 100%
REBELES ERBREER Ordinary shares
1005 7T & & &
Indirectly held:
BEFE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$106,067,921 100%
3 TR R A =R Ordinary shares
106,067,921%7 M3
T @R
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$34,944,929 100%
N TEF IR B 2R Ordinary shares
34,944,92937 3% T
AR
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B B SRR M EE ()

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOAN TO 9 HHMEBELAFARBR RMEELATHERR
A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM BERMELATIRET-FLF (])

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued/paid up
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name ALt E R place of operation BRT/HR held
=1 EEEBRER TEXRREERY R 1R FEER
Indirectly held:
BERFE
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacture and sale of US$129,961,924 100%
Corporation Limited fifez) fermentation-based food Legal capital
KA (BE)BRHERAT additives and biochemical 129,961,924 7T
products and cassava starch- A TE IR A
based industrial products
including MSG, GA, modified
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
M EE R HE BB AR INE
HrERRAERH IXER:
BEKE AR LIRS
BERER T RIS B A
Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability ~ Packaging and sale of MSG and US$20,270,000 100%
KZERm (EP)ERAR company beverages in the PRC Registered capital
RE BRAA TE B B 5 T 8 R T R 20,270,000 1T
& A
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sale of MSG in US$1,838,282 100%
HiFg Vietnam Legal capital
EHEERREERES 1,838,282% L
EERA
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited liability ~ Manufacture and sale of MSG in the US$17,200,000 70%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. company PRC Registered capital
WRRASEEXERRA RE BRAA EREEEREERES 17,200,000 7
& A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. PRC, limited liability ~ Packaging and sale of MSG in the US$9,800,000 100%
Ltd. company PRC Registered capital
LERACEFR AR e BARAR EREEE K HEERES 9,800,000% 7T
&R
Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd. Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava US$2,300,000 100%
1] starch-based industrial products Legal capital
in Vietnam and for export 2,300,000% 7T
EHEREREERERN ITE EERA
EmiHE A
Xiamen Darong Import & Export ~ PRC, limited liability ~ Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Trade Co., Ltd. company industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EFfAR#ELNESER AR RE BRA R EHEEBRRERN IEEM 254,0003 7t &£

90 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BB (E8) BRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B R R B RE ()

10 HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP 10

11

Included in held-to-maturity financial assets is a 5-year
construction bond issued by Dong Nai Province People’s
Committee of Vietham on 30 March 2005, denominated in
Vietnam Dong. The bond earns annual interest of 8% and is
redeemable at the end of the 5-year term. The carrying amount
of the bond approximates its fair value.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 11

The fair values of trade receivables are as follows:

BEEINHCHESE-—F5KE
FEZIBM B EEREERmRARE
ARZBE (Dong Nai Province People’s
Committee of Vietham)® —ZEZ HF =
A=TBEHABEEFEZAFES
&% - % EHF T FRIFE8E  WHRAF
HmRER - ZESF 2 REEREAEAT
Ao

FE Uz 52 5% AR %
EWE SRR AFEWT

Group
rEH
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Trade receivables from third parties EUWE=FE SRR 29,447 28,985
Trade receivables from a related party JEWRBHEATEZERER
(Note 34(c)) (M4 5E34(c)) 267 320
Less: provision for impairment of trade B FEWE 5 R
receivables B B (2,777) (427)
26,937 28,878

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 120 days and the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

EUESEFNEERHETMERE120
R MEWE S RFHRE DT :

Group

rEE
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx Fx=T
Current RN ER 17,252 13,967
30-90 days 30&290K 7,171 8,083
91-180 days 912180k 2,860 4,471
181-365 days 181E365K 752 2,707
Over 365 days 365K A & 1,679 77
29,714 29,305

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of US$22,470,000
(2008: US$19,081,000) were fully performing.

RZZEZEhAhF+_A=+—"8 EK=E
5 BE 22,470,000 T (—Z T T )\ &F:
19,081,000% ) E 2 HETT °
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Bt 75 R R MY RE ()

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of US$4,083,000
(2008: US$9,791,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of those past

due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

11

BUEZER(E)
N-_ZEEhhE+_A=+—H &84
4,083,000% 7t (= ZF = J\F : 9,791,000
EL)MEWRE ZERE B HE I RR
B ERBE T EERE S E T
B o %5 B HAB I AR R E /) E UGIE R
BRERDATED T

Group

rEE
2009 2008
US$°000 US$'000
FEr F=Ex

Overdue by paogi

Current to 3 months BNEZ= =@ A 3,947 3,302
3 - 6 months =@AZENEA 57 4,063
Over 6 months ~{E A A E 79 2,426
4,083 9,791

As of 31 December 2009, trade receivables of US$3,161,000
(2008: US$433,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was US$2,777,000 as of 31 December 2009 (2008:
US$427,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate
to wholesalers, which are in unexpectedly difficult economic
situations. It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The ageing of these receivables is as

W_ZEZEAFE+_FA=+—H EKEZ
28 %3,161,000 L (ZFEZENF:
433,000 EL)EFTRE-R=_ZZT A
F+ZA=1+—HELNBESER
2,777,000% 7T ( == ZT )\ 4F : 427,0003%
TC) o & Bl (B &Y FE W SR IE = 2 B R 7N 4R
ETRRSEREN LB AR Mo E

follows: IR E A ST A 5 TE R 38 T U @ 3 % R K
RIBRERE DT T -
Group
rEH
2009 2008
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Overdue by 360 5
90 days to 180 days 902180k 1,548 =
181 days to 360 days 180E 360K - 379
Over 360 days 360K A 1,613 54
3,161 433
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11

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

11

FEU 5 5 AR (48)
AEENEKE ZERNEEENTIIE
HEHE

Group

rEE
2009 2008
Us$’000 US$'000
FER Fx=T
Vietnam Dong M A 16,640 16,216
uss$ £ 8,836 10,284
Renminbi AR 1,461 2,347
Others Hi - 31
26,937 28,878

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

AEENEKE S RIOREREZ B0
T

Group

rEH
2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Beginning of the year F4 427 31
Provision for impairment (Note 21) RERE (FIE21) 2,350 396
End of the year FR 2,777 427

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement (Note 21). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

e MR BUCRFOREREBE S ARE
Wt R e [TTBFA | o (BFRE21) - R
BERARNSE R AREE KRB
B R -
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BB R R M EE ()

12 INVENTORIES - GROUP 12 FE—F5£H
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Spare parts and consumables T REEm 4,338 4,091
Raw materials JR# 37,877 40,794
Work in progress & 2,979 2,709
Finished products BURK i 20,402 24,902
65,596 72,496

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to US$179,486,000 (2008:
US$243,923,000).

13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13

Bank balances totaling US$11,861,000 (2008: US$10,931,000)
and US$23,868,000 (2008: US$16,764,000) as at 31 December
2009 were mainly placed with major state-owned financial
institutions in PRC and Vietnam, respectively. The remittance
of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam is subject to the
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese

BRAEAIRFTAHEXNAZTFEK
K AE179,486,000 L (T N\ F:
243,923,000E 7T ) °

ReRBEERD

R-ZZAE+-_A=+—8 R17&
#4 2£11,861,000k . (ZEZE N F:
10,931,000 JT ) 5&23,868,0005 7t ( —
T T )\ 4 :16,764,000% 7T) % Bl FEAF
EREENTERBNEHE - ZEES
P 1 o B % 8 e 7B 38 <7 P B % R AT O

governments. SN B il $5 7t
Group Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FTER FET TER FET
Cash at bank and on hand  $R{TREFRE 27,863 31,384 3,866 8,572
Short-term bank deposits EESRITE R 11,751 4,902 = =
39,614 36,286 3,866 8,572
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13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

13 HeRBReER/M (&)
AEERERASEEMWRNATEE

following currencies: A :
Group Company
KEE ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET FErx F=E7T
Vietnam Dong BEE 14,001 12,721 - =
us$ =P 13,789 12,618 3,458 8,458
Renminbi AR 11,416 10,833 = =
Hong Kong dollar BT 42 49 42 49
New Taiwan dollar =N 366 65 366 65
39,614 36,286 3,866 8,572
14 SHARE CAPITAL 14 BXE
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEZRER
Par value Number of
uss$ shares uUs$’000
HEXT B3 & E FErx
At 31 December 2008 and —ZEZENF+-A=+—HK

31 December 2009 —ZEENEF+=-_A=1+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERITRBEEER
Par value Number of
uss shares US$'000
HEXT RHEE FER
At 31 December 2008 and —ZFEZENF+_A=+—HK
31 December 2009 —ETNFEFT_A=+—H 0.01  1,522,742,000 15,228

On 13 June 2003, a share option scheme and a pre-IPO share
option plan were approved pursuant to a written resolution of

the Company.

RZBE=FXA+=0 AR2FRIERE
ERRERMEBREAERERRAE

P AT B A i At &) o
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14

96

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Under the share option scheme, the board of directors may
at its discretion offer options to any directors, employees,
business partners of the Group which entitle them to subscribe
for shares in aggregate not exceeding 10% of the shares in
issue from time to time. These options have duration of ten
years from the date of grant, but shall lapse where the grantee
ceases to be employed by the Company or its subsidiaries. No
share options were granted by the Company under the share
option scheme during the current and previous years.

Under the pre-IPO share option plan (“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”), the board of directors could at its discretion
offer options to any directors or employees of the Group
and its subsidiaries entitling them to subscribe for shares of
the Company. On 13 June 2003, 24,500,000 options and
5,270,000 options were granted to directors of the Company
and employees of the Group, respectively, under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme. On 12 June 2008, all outstanding share
options expired and were cancelled.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BRAEIR (i) BRAF

14

Bxa (#)

REBERESS EF2URNBERAKHE
EHEE EE EXBBHROBERE &
TREEMNRBEATBETREETR
7D10% M A - R EFBRENBERH AR
HE BEF RETF ERRZARA
THXERARBRENE R RRKRY -
AR BERF FBEY ERIE BRI 2
BT R

BEEXARERABRESE ([EX
ARERATERETE]) E=20 BB
MASEREWNBARTWNEERES
REERE BTERERIRBERQAR
B —EE=F A +=H EZTERE
BRXAASKRATERETS DB REAR
RIEE R AEERE B 124,500,00010 K&
5,270,000 EE ki -R =TT N\ F X A
TR FBRARBRITEREAED ERIL
Mo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 ¥R 2R B EE ()
15 RESERVES 15 GEfW
(a) Group (a) #=%H
(Note)
Merger
reserve
Share  Exchange (&) Retained
premium reserve aOtRE earnings Total
5% E ERGRE REEF &t
Us$'000 UsS$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FTET TEr FTEL FET FET
At 1 January 2008 RZZZENF—F—H 47,358 7,631 79,994 102,920 237,903
Profit for the year AEE %A - - - 8,403 8,403
Dividends [Edsy = = - (9,076) (9,076)
Exchange translation R ZRE
differences - 2,573 - - 2,573
At 31 December 2008 RZEBEENF+-_A=+—H 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 239,803
Representing: HIE
2008 Final dividend ERRNZZTTNE
proposed RERR S -
Others Hit 102,247
Retained earnings asat R=—TZTN\F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2008 ZIRE B 102,247
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZNF—A—H 47,358 10,204 79,994 102,247 239,803
Profit for the year AFE R - - - 17,983 17,983
Dividends (g = = = (4,152) (4,152)
Exchange translation X ERE
differences - 104 - - 104
At 31 December 2009 ARZZTZNE+-A=+—H 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 253,738
Representing: HIE
2009 Final dividend BBk —EENE
proposed RERE 4,840
Others Hit 111,238
Retained earnings asat RZ_TTNF+-A=1+—H
31 December 2009 ZIREBF 116,078
Note: At
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEENEHBEEIAEER ST =_F+=
between the nominal value of the share capital and share A =75 B 55K 25 4 BRF AT IR BT B 8 B 9 AR R
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group H B & A& 17 5 (B AR A &) B R TR ANE
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal BRI =5

value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

thereof.
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15 RESERVES (continued)

15 %06 (48)

(b) Company (b) ZA2ATH
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
13 R E REBF =)
US$'000 us$'000 US$'000
TET FET TE1
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF-—HF—H 194,098 14,821 208,919
Profit for the year RAEE A = 7,988 7,988
Dividends f% 8 - (9,076) (9,076)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENE+-_A=+—H 194,098 13,733 207,831
Representing: Bp
2008 Final dividend EBERNZ_TTNF
proposed REIR B -
Others Hh 13,733
Retained earnings asat RZZTTNF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2008 ZREBEA 13,733
At 1 January 2009 RZZEThFE—F—H 194,098 13,733 207,831
Profit for the year A E A - 6,909 6,909
Dividends @SN - (4,152) (4,152)
At 31 December 2009 RZZBEZNE+ZA=1T—H 194,098 16,490 210,588
Representing: Bp
2009 Final dividend BERNZ —ZBBNF
proposed REARR B 4,840
Others Hit 11,650
Retained earnings asat MN-_ZTZAF+_-_A=+—8
31 December 2009 21% &N 16,490

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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Bt 35 R R B RE ()

16 TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP
As at 31 December 2009, the ageing analysis of trade payables

17

16 EMNRHEER-FKE

R-FBFAFT_H=

T—R ENES

is as follows: BERA BRI DT
2009 2008
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current B &A 12,448 7,733
30-90 days 30E90K 353 3,201
91-180 days 91E 180K 60 3,368
181-365 days 181%365K% 182 33
13,043 14,335

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

AEERNEZEFNREERATER

denominated in the following currencies: EREE
2009 2008
US$'000 Us$'000
FErx FET
Vietnam Dong BEE 6,121 4,564
us$ ETT 6,474 4,272
Renminbi AR #& 448 5,499
13,043 14,335
BANK BORROWINGS 17 SRITESRE
Company
b /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
UsS$'000 us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET FErx T
Long-term bank borrowings KHEITHEE
— secured (Note 35) — G (MiFE35) 1,873 3,746 = =
— unsecured — 4 1 41 17,472 10,746 = =
Current portion of long- RHRTEEZ
term bank borrowings BN HAER (D
— secured — B (1,873) (1,873) = =
— unsecured — 44K 3 (1,250) (5,067) = =
16,222 7,552 - -
Short-term bank EHRTEER
borrowings
— unsecured (Note 33) — R (P EE33) 23,252 38,660 8,734 9,713
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MR R E ()
17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SITHE (8)
As at 31 December 2009, the Group's long-term bank RZZZNF+ZA=+—8 AKEEZ
borrowings were repayable as follows: RERITEE AR A T HREER:
Group Company
rEE b N
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx F= TER F=x
Within one year —F R 3,123 6,940 - -
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWMF - 7,552 - =
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 16,222 = - =
19,345 14,492 - _
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate AR ENAEEEERNTEEN
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIEBA T :
6-12
Within 1-3 3-6 months
1 month months months RE Total
—BAR —Z=@A Z=ZE,f@A T=f@A &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
S FEx FEx TEr TErn
At 31 December 2008 RZZETNEF
+t-—HA=+—~H
Total borrowings BEER 35,377 13,400 4,375 = 53,152
At 31 December 2009 RZZZENEF
+-A=+—8
Total borrowings BERE 26,768 8,734 7,095 = 42,597
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest-rate RANEFEZENARRBERNEERN
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: FIERHT :
Within 1-3
1 month months Total
—EBAR —Z={@A &5t
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
F=ET FEx F=E7T
At 31 December 2008 RZZBETZNF+-A=+—H
Total borrowings BERE 1,800 7,913 9,713
At 31 December 2009 RZZETZNF+=A=+—H
Total borrowings BEERE - 8,734 8,734
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B 7 ¥R 2R B EE ()
17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SRITHE (1)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the REER REEBERFEMNENT
balance sheet date were as follows:
2009 2008
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
USS  Renminbi dollar us$ Renminbi dollar
E AR% Haw e AR WA
Bank borrowings BITEE 3.1% - 2.1% 53% 6.7% 4%
The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the REER ARREBBREFEMNT
balance sheet date were as follows:
2009 2008
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ dollar us$ dollar
EYH Foil=gd ETT e
Bank borrowings RITEE 1.9% 2.1% 4.1% 4%
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their RITBENERASBOAEATE:
fair value.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in RITEENRBSBRA TERE:
the following currencies:
Group Company
rEE RAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FER F=E=T FErx F=ET
us$ ETT 39,163 46,752 5,300 8,800
Renminbi AR - 5,487 - -
New Taiwan dollar e 3,434 913 3,434 913
42,597 53,152 8,734 9,713
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 18 BEMBMR-FRME

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is

as follows:

BT PG BTV R IR & ORI AR R B2 AT
EEREROERPERAEEEZEA

s
B o
=5F

EXFERBEZSHMT :

2009 2008

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January w—HA—H 9,497 10,544

Credited to income statement (Note 24) A AME R (H5E24) (1,447) (1,047)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 8,050 9,497
Provided for in respect of: BN 1= TE 4 B

2009 2008

US$'000 Us$'000

Fxx FET

Accelerated tax depreciation IR IE T B 8,939 10,179

Other temporary differences Hfth R = EE (889) (682)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—¢© 8,050 9,497

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

RERRLEMSHEEKRBE CReH &K
SHAR R B0 A% B A [ B0 45 BR AT ) B0 & B) 40
T

BELEFMEHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

EHETE
2009 2008
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 10,179 11,243
Credited to income statement AU S R (1,240) (1,064)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H”H 8,939 10,179
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B B R R B RE ()

18

19

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

18 BEFRSR-—FHRME (&)

EEFREHEE

Other temporary differences

Hip Ers =58
2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$'000
F X5t FET
At 1 January n—A—H (682) (699)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (T A) 0k B = (207) 17
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (889) (682)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when fini 5 B VA TE RI A TR HE ) 5 & HA T 18 & 728 B
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets EHMETHEaGEEE BREMEHEE
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred kB &S RARGEHERBK ST
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied Al EEFREHEEMBEERE - LR
by the same taxation authority. The above deferred income EFEREERBEBEERE  RNEE
tax assets and liabilities have been offset and are shown in BEARREEMSHAMEE -
the consolidated balance sheet under deferred income tax
liabilities.
REVENUE 19 kK&
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based AEEEGERHEEBER RAME - £k
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch- EakARERVEL BELEIRND 8

based industrial products including modified starch, glucose
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Turnover recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 was
US$289,137,000 and US$348,557,000 respectively.

EREE KB M BESE -HE-ZT
ENFER_ETNF+_A=1+—HILF
EHEERE £ D 5 A289,137,0003%
7T % 348,557,000% 7T ©
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20 OTHER LOSSES - NET

20 HfttEiR— B8

2009 2008

us$’'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Net exchange loss E & B85 (3,825) (1,538)

Net loss from sale of electricity HEENFERE (278) (74)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZEER

plant and equipment (44) (35)

Sale of scrap materials EERHEE 231 439

Interest income from held-to-maturity BHEZD B2 0%

financial assets BERBWA 234 245

Others Hith 745 767

(2,937) (196)

21 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

21 HEHESFZAX

HERA  $HE M #H 5 X AT R S P

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BENRAZSTEAT
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Changes in inventories of finished goods BN mAIE R 7T & 28
and work-in-progress 4,230 (10)
Raw materials and consumables used B R RAE & 175,256 243,933
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 6) & = #84 ([f5E6) 1,457 1,474
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 8) 1 {55 PR AR 5H (BT 5E8) 144 145
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl B & 295 295
Depreciation on property, ME BERZBITE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (Pf5E7) 28,083 29,307
Provision for impairment of property, M BRE R ERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) BB (MEE7) 3,433 2,154
Operating leases expenses in respect of ERES L EEROZ
leasehold land 2 180 163
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERFFHZ (HE28) 21,271 21,727
Provision for impairment of trade JEWE 5 BR FOR B #E
receivables (Note 11) (KT=E11) 2,350 396
Other expenses E h 5 52 25,626 26,214
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $§E MR A - $4E K& 5 84
expenses and administrative expenses A RITB RS 2% 262,325 325,798
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22

ENVIRONMENTAL CHARGES IMPOSED BY
VIETNAM GOVERNMENT

In September 2008, the Group's subsidiaries in Vietnam were
under inspection by Department of Natural Resource and
Environment in Vietnam for certain environmental issues.
On 8 October 2008, the Group received a decision from the
Inspection Unit that the Group had been in violation of certain
environmental laws in Vietnam. The Group was required to
pay approximately US$16,000 and US$7,713,000 as penalty
and environmental fees respectively. All these penalty and
environmental fees have been recorded in the consolidated
income statement in 2008. Based on a legal opinion, the
Directors considered that there were no significant contingent
liabilities due to this environmental issue which may result
in material financial impact to the Group as at 31 December
2008.

During the year, the Group indicated that they are willing to
provide a subsidy of up to US$1,475,000 (equivalent to VND 25
billion) to certain farmer associations in Vietnam to enhance the
Group's reputation in Vietnam. In February 2010, a preliminary
investigation report was completed by scholars from the
National University of Ho Chi Minh City regarding extent and
degree of pollution to farmers caused by the Group. The Group
will base on this investigation report to finalise the subsidy
amount. As at the report date, the Group has not yet finalised
the subsidy amount with the farmer associations. Up to the
date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any latest
development of this issue which may result in material financial
impact to the Group.

22

HEBRRRWZREHERERA
RZZBEZNFAA AEERBEHN

0

BRAERE TEREEEESBENE
REBRBREZAET - RS NE+ A
NB AEBERAEENEEAEE
EREEETREANNRZ - A& E
A5 Bl #916,0003= 5t }.7,713,000
ETEASIREARREERA 20255
REBEBRAECN _ZETNEERA
Wk FRE - R_SEENE+ = A
=+—H REZEER EFRAEWE
AUREREETEMEKEMNEAKAE
BE-RMEANEEERERNTHLE-

FRN-AEBRAEBERSE THHEE
RAMBIZEME1,475,0002 T (HER
25,000,000,0008 7 /& ) ## B - AR FH AN
SEERBENEE - R_T—FTF_F
HEAMEYAZE  BEERERYILHA
ERE BEFEREAEEYHERRERK
SR EHEREE REEAGRE L
ERERFYSEIELFRERTE - RIRE
BE - AEEMARERBELBEHSE
EHBRAE -BHEAREAH BT
RISBAEMAIEHASEEESNUBH
B HMNZEHEZETER-
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23 FINANCE COSTS - NET

23 MBXH-$E

2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Finance income — interest income on short- B EUR A — 52 HASR 1717 3%

term bank deposits FEWA (747) (2,267)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENERX 1,235 3,200

Amortisation of discount on long-term REEN—BBEBEEALZ
payable to a related party (Note 34(c)) e oy (FIsE34()) 359 439
Finance costs M 1,594 3,639
Finance costs — net FBEE—FE 847 1,372

Interest expense on bank borrowings was stated after
deducting interest of US$472,000 (2008: US$26,000)
capitalised under properties, plant and equipment.

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

R1T 18 B F 2 F Rk 5| £472,000%
7T (ZZEZ)\4F :26,000E7T) & FIEE - I
RE BERZEBTEFTER-

24 FRFMAX
REARBERANBRNAEHFAXBE:

2009 2008

us$’000 us$'000

FEx FZET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EMEH 6,681 7,694
Under provision of income tax in MEFREEHEE TR

previous years - 406

Deferred income tax (Note 18) BB (M7E18) (1,447) (1,047)

5,234 7,053
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24

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

24

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable taxation rate for Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise
Corporation Limited (“Vietnam Vedan”), which is a major

subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FRr8MAX (&K)

AR ER B R E AT 1S B A g ) 19 P 45 50 22 i 35
REAEEEZZMEAR KA (BE) K
AR RA ([BERF]) /) E BT R
SAEMERNRNERN T

2009 2008
Uss$'000 Us$'000
SPESTE Fx=T
Profit before tax B A A1 g A 23,028 13,462
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% ¥R F K 15%
(2008: 15%) SHEZHIE
(Z2ZN\F:15%) 3,454 2,019
Tax effects of different tax rate TRME 2 H B E 25 (133)
Income not subject to tax BRHTEA (2) (300)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AT HUR 2 71 B 2 1,659 3,922
Under provision of income tax in BEFEMERBEHETR
previous years - 406
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A 2 A A ER G &R
tax losses - (92)
Tax losses for which no deferred ERRREMBMEEZ
income tax asset was recognised e 98 1,231
Tax charge TIE S 5,234 7,053

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$9,547,000 (2008: US$8,897,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in one to five

years.

BEEMBHREEDRERBREF S
B AR SR AR Bl A 3R M BT A E A R 1B
VERERR - N [E B AR MR TIE9,547,000%
7T (== Z )\ 4 : 8,897,000 7T ) A] &£ 82
AR SH R R ER A - 2 SRR —
FEREME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B RE ()

24

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Enterprise income tax (“EIT")

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Vietnam

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and
expenses items which are not assessable or deductible
for income tax purposes. The applicable EIT rates for the
Group’s operations in Vietnam range from 15% to 25%,
as stipulated in the respective subsidiaries’ investment
licenses.

The PRC

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and
expenses items which are not assessable or deductible
for income tax purposes. The applicable EIT rate for the
Group's operation in the PRC range from 12.5% to 25%.

Xiamen Maotai, Shanghai Vedan and Shandong
Snowflake are entitled to full exemption from EIT for the
first two years and 50% reduction in EIT for the next
three years, commencing from the first profitable year
after offsetting all unexpired tax losses brought forward
from the previous years. All subsidiaries have already
triggered their first year of tax exemption entitlement.

Singapore/Hong Kong

No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

Taiwan

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and
expenses items which are not assessable or deductible
for income tax purposes. The applicable EIT rate for the
Group's operations in Taiwan is 25%.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company to the extent
of US$6,909,000 (2008: US$7,988,000).
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24 PRSI ()
A ([REREB])

25

(1)

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

B

b 2 T 15 5 4% B 755 BB 3R A 0 58 Vi A
A8 BT HEARS A
R AU T8 B 1B F8%E - REBE
BMENEBERCEMSHENT
15%£25% ' EB A RS BHIRE
FF A BT AR E ©

&+ 5

1 28 P 15 798 4% B 7% B SR B0 T )i A
T8 AL EHRMBART KA
MR TR B EH A% - AREE
TENEBBEREEMEHENF
12.5%%25% °

EFXZE - EBRARILRSEER
HrABEFEAENREBHHKA
ERR% AEERNEERRAZE
MELBHRELEMSREREERE
B=(EAFEAIZ0%EEMEHRE
e TEMBARLEBAGFRH
HA

e EE

F R 7 5 B A AN 6 0 B 7E R D0 3R
RE BRI ES AT ERTORN
B bt 36 S 4 BT 03 BB R G B
Bime

1 36 P 15 798 4% B 7% B 3R B0 T i A
FE - BTG HABARB A
HRe BB EL A - AEE

BENEBERCEREHER
25% °

BRERELER
FFARRALRA B R R BB R E A
i F 56,909,000F T (—Z 2T )\ F ¢
7,988,000% 7T ) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

26

27

DIVIDENDS

26

The dividends paid in 2009 and 2008 were US$4,152,000
(0.273 US cents per share) and US$4,644,000 (0.305 US
cents per share), respectively. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 0.317 US cents per ordinary
share, totalling US$4,840,000 (2008: Nil). Such dividend is to
be approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this

dividend payable.

BR
—EENFRZZEENFZ2ENRED
Al /4,152,000 7T (F%0.273%F L) &
4,644,000% 7T (&/#%0.305% 1) - E=H5E
B RAR B R EBAR0.317EM - &
4,840,000 T (ZEZENF :T)-F
BB MR RN EEAFREANS Lt
o B B S R N S R b FE A AR S,

2009 2008
Us$’000 US$'000
FER F=T
2009 interim dividend of 0.273 US cents ENZFFTNFEFHEE
(2008: 0.305 US cents) per ordinary Fh&E@AR0.2733E
share, paid (ZEENF:
0.305311ll) 4,152 4,644
2009 final dividend proposed (2008: Nil) ZETNFERIERARBRE
(ZFFNFF) 4,840 -
8,992 4,644
EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SEER
(a) Basic (a) E=&

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

BREANBNIZARABRERSE A
FEAE S R BR A F A B 1T BB

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue IAEE gt E o
during the year.
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Profit attributable to equity holders RATIRERAB A
of the Company JE 18 55 17,983 8,403
Weighted average number B BT AR N T #
of ordinary shares in issue (AF5T)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BRELRAZF
(US cents per share) (FRREA) 1.18 0.55
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B 3 R B EE ()

27

28

29

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per

share as there is no dilutive instruments for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

27

28

SRER (E)

(b) #8
HE_ZTFENFEFR_ZEZN\F+A
=+—HLtFE HAREBESETHE FK
BEANEGREARZFHER-

EERARAX (BIEEEFM)

2009 2008
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances IE - R¥&kEM 17,173 17,767
Bonuses TEAL 1,822 630
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  EREMA — EREERE 2 1,436 1,400
Other employee benefits E b BRF 840 1,930
21,271 21,727

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 29 REREHFER

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 8% to 22% of the basic salaries predetermined by
local governments. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the Group has contributed approximately US$570,000 (2008:
US$503,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes
to the scheme at a rate of 15% of the employee’s salary. The
state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for
the entire obligations payable to retired employees. For the
year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has contributed
approximately US$753,000 (2008: US$733,000) to the
aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.
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BIEF BRI RAR NEE AT EE
FILRR FBEERNERE RN TEE
HHRGR R EIE L 3K - AEBE % FAT
SMEREAEEHMETIEEETN8%E
22% -BIREMARAKGTE B ERRIK
EESXMMIBERKET BEZETNF
+ZA=+—BLFE AEEEEME
REPWA R R 3 49570,000% 7T (=
T )\ £ : 503,000% 7T) °

RIR R AR B RAR NEE A BEE
ERMBERENNES T SRETEED
TR ANEEIZEEFSM15%MTEI1E
HEF-BEREHNESRBAEEES
RAREEREMERE -HEZZTThF
T+ A=+ RLEFE AEERLEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R 2R B AE ()
30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 ESEREREEEMFH
MANAGEMENT
(a) The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable (@) AEFEEAEERARAREZTENK
to the directors of the Company by the Group during the RS sE N T

year are as follows:

2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx Fx=T
Fees we - -
Basic salaries and allowances [ 3 KO£ RL 1,188 1,472
Discretionary bonuses 15 3 A FEAT 1,798 588
2,986 2,060
None of the directors of the Company waived any REEARARNBEE W EWEEMH
emoluments during the year (2008: Nil). B (ZZZNFE &) -
The remuneration of every director of the Company for HE-_ZZNF+A=+—H1t
the year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: FEARBSEFNIMEIINT
Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses benefits(i) Total
Name of Director ESpz e ¢ BERREA E bR () &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEL Txn Txn TEn
Executive Director nIESE
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRELE - 354 1,204 13 1,571
Mr. Yang, Cheng BIELA = 200 548 13 761
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BERELE - 317 23 13 353
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRI EE - 150 23 13 186
Mr. Wang, Joel J. FEHLE - 50 - 4 54
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng AR %L - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRARE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERLE - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RABE L - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen kst - - - 12 12
Total ARt = 1,071 1,798 117 2,986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:

30 EEREREEBOTFH (8)

BHE_TEN\F+_A=1t—HL
FEARAEEZNHMETINT :

Discretionary Other
Fees Salary bonuses benefits(i) Total
Name of Director YT Be ¢ WERRRA HAER) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn Tin Fxr TEr TEn
Executive Director HiTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEERE - 369 394 13 776
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXAE - 200 179 13 39
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 329 7 13 349
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 224 4 13 241
Mr. Wang, Joel J. FERHEE - 24 4 13 241
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng BAHELE - = - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREKAE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong by it - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray 38 it - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen bt - - - 12 12
Total ait - 1,346 588 126 2,060
Notes: 3 -
(i) Other benefits include travelling allowance. (i) 35 R B R = R B o
(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest by AEEREEENRSTHO AL
in the Group for both years were also directors and their ATHAES BEMHLEEHN -
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. AR o
(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to () AEELEARATNEEHZAEE

the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December
2009 and 2008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MEHRRME @
31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 BEEERERS
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit before income tax R eF PT84 A A 23,028 13,462
Adjustments for: BATIEE AE:
— Finance costs — net (Note 23) — BB —FE
(M$5E23) 847 1,372
— Interest received from held-to-maturity ~— — 2 W HE = 2 8 2 81 7%
financial assets (Note 20) BEZHE (HFF20) (234) (245)
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME BEREETE
equipment (Note 7) (FI5E7) 28,083 29,307
— Provision for impairment of property, —ME - BERZRERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) B (MYsE7) 3,433 2,154
— Provision for impairment of trade — 8B 5 ERKRFORERE
receivables (Note 11) (FfF5E11) 2,350 396
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EmEEEH (M5E8)
(Note 8) 1,457 1,474
— Amortisation of land use rights — T fF A R B (PP EE6)
(Note 6) 144 145
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —EWME  BE RERE
equipment (see below) EiE (R T30 44 35
59,152 48,100
Change in working capital (excluding BEES B (R WE
the effects of acquisition and exchange HEREGREEEZ
differences on consolidation) PN ZE5)
— Inventories -8 6,900 (16,326)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —EWE ZRM AR
other receivables FRIE o H Ath fE U SR IE (2.160) 13,379
— Trade payables, accruals and —ERE SRR EE
other payables B R & H b FE A R0R (2,502) 4,991
— Amount due to minority interest — FE D B R BUIE 82 (1,153)
— Amount due to a related party —EN—BEREALT
FKIB (42) (87)
Cash generated from operations BEEGEHEHE 61,430 48,904
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R R B EE ()
31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 BEEXBERERS (H)
(continued)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of it HeRERAN LEVE BEK
property, plant and equipment comprise: REMERBAT
2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFRE (PFFFE7) 88 94
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BE R
plant and equipment FEEE (44) (35)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WE R
plant and equipment BBETS KA 44 59
32 COMMITMENTS 32 KiE
(a) Capital commitments for property, plant and () V¥ BERIKERIHERAEZE
equipment and land use rights AN
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the AEBREEHETYNEREEZ
balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows: BEARLTHWT
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx Fx=T
Property, plant and equipment M WEREE 1,593 14,042
Land use rights T A 1,273 =
2,866 14,042
The Company did not have any significant capital RARARZEZNETZRA=+—
commitments at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil). B EERERERALE (ZTEN
Fom|)o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B B SRR M EE ()

32 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and building under non-

32 RKiE(E)
(b) KERNRIE
A& BRI M2 F A Al s
KERAMARRRZ A HER

cancellable operating leases as follows: EFIRRBENT
2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx Fx=T
Not later than one year F—FA 126 126

Later than one year and not later F_EERFA

than five years 475 482
Later than five years ERFR 3,223 3,341
3,824 3,949

The Company did not have any significant commitment
under operating lease at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

34

Save as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements, as at
31 December 2009, the Company has given guarantees for
bank borrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$138,654,000
(2008: US$173,220,000) of which US$101,357,000 (2008:

US$129,039,000) has not been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The table below summarises related parties and nature of
their relationships with the Company as at 31 December

2009:

Related parties

BEREAL

ARAR-_ZEZNF+_A=Z+—8H%
REHAH T ETMEBREE(ZZEE)N
FodE) o

33 BRAR
BB ISHRERMELAFEEEIIN R
TNF+_A=F+—H £Z2AAEKB
NAERHIRITEE 2 &£1R3E138,654,000
EL(ZZFZE)\4F:173,220,000ETT) *
HF101,357,000E L (=T )N\ F:
129,039,000% 7T ) (M AR E) A ©

3 BHEZEALTEZS
@ TERBHRA-_ZEZTHLhE+ A
=t HEEEALTRBRAEN
NARREEMEE :

Relationship with the Company
BEAR AR KB R

Taiwan Vedan
2ERA

Tung Hai Fermentation Industrial Company Limited
("Tung Hai")
REBETEROBRAR ([RE])

A substantial shareholder of the Company

RAFHEERR
A subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan

BB E AR
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B B SRR M EE ()

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Significant related parties transactions, which were

34

FREALES ()

(b)

EREBBEREBTRABEAL

carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business ETHNEARSAT
are as follows:
2009 2008
Note Us$‘'000 Us$'000
Pt 5 FEx F=ET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan mAagKRtiEEEm (i) 3,590 2,552
Technological support fee paid to [/ B /& & & &L £+
Tung Hai and Taiwan Vedan IR ER (i) 1,641 2,755
Commission income from W B & 2R ST Y
Taiwan Vedan G PN (ii) 103 114
Notes: HIEE -
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RATEERAAEEEALNE

the related party were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms no less favourable than
those charged to and contracted with other third party

customers of the Group.

(ii) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

(c) Key management compensation
Key management includes all executive directors. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below.

(c)

EHEBRBEGTET BERRE
RTBER A EBREME=ETS
R 5P A K RT SLEV B AR R A65K

(i) ARAFEFRAREIRZIERR
R ETT W A RIBARR B
fERR s & -

TEEBEAEME
TEEEARREMANTES-C
NEENEFEEBAE 28 TR%
FENE DT

2009 2008
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Salaries and other short-term 5 B R L th 52 BR
employee benefits EE 7 2,925 1,999
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B B R R M RE ()

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FREALES (&])

(d) Year-end balances with related parties
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had the following
significant balances with related parties:

(d) REBEALZERER
R-TBhE+-A=+—H A%
MEAMEALZ EBERMT

2009 2008
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
Pt 5 S FET
Current: B ER :
Trade receivable from Taiwan FEW B EKRNE SRR
Vedan (Note 11) (FF&ET1) (i) 267 320
Due to Taiwan Vedan e & K 5K 0E (i) 172 214
Current portion of the amount BEEEEEZRENMNEE
due to Taiwan Vedan in R F3 3k I8 B EA 2 10
connection with assignment of
trademarks (i) 1,871 1,786
Non-current: FERNER -
Non-current portion of BEEEEEZREMNSE
the amount due to Taiwan UK FI SR IB JE BN ER &R 19
Vedan in connection with
assignment of trademarks (i) 4,031 5,902

Notes:

(i) All these balances with related parties are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(ii) The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan
Vedan for the assignment of certain trademarks. It is
payable by seven equal annual instalment commencing on
1 January 2007. The face amount is US$15,014,000 and
was discounted to fair value using a rate based on the
borrowing rate of 4.7% at the date of assignment of the

trademarks.

B e :

(i)  BEEALHAHREEER
Res BRESHEE-

(i) ZAXBEHEAKRERETHEEM
e E%RAZATFE - HBR=
ZE+F—A—BR HtHEF
S SAER K EE - E{E/4A15,014,000
En WIRREEEEIZE A ZE
BN RATEFAEZNEFRAER
FE-

35 BANKING FACILITIES 35 ITIELE

Save as disclosed in Notes 13 and 33 to the financial
statements, the Group's bank borrowings of US$1,873,000
as at 31 December 2009 (2008: US$3,746,000) were secured
by legal charges over certain of the Group's property,
plant and equipment with net book value of approximately
US$14,206,000 (2008: US$19,315,000).

B BE 75 SRR B sE13 33 AT B & A
KEBRZ-ZZZNF+=ZA=+—HZ
$R17 £ E1,873,000% L (ZEE N\ F:
3,746,000% 7T ) F AR /F {E 914,206,000
F (ZFZT )\ :19,315,00057T) 2 &
TAREEYE BB Ra&# 25T EBIE
R o
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31

BE+-RA=1+—HLFEKRSXE

DECEMBER
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTEx FET FE7T F=E=x F=E=x
Turnover =8 % 289,137 348,557 317,431 290,695 257,904
Profit before taxation F %1 Al A 23,028 13,462 20,738 14,762 10,240
Taxation 7 18 (5.234) (7,053) (4,878) (3,827) (2,293)
Profit for the year and A% &% F| &
attributable to equity NG
holders of the =B ARG
Company s ) 17,983 8,403 16,856 10,915 7,947

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31

BR+-A=+—BHRaRERAR

DECEMBER

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F 3=t SEEETE SEEETE FET FET

Assets and liabilities BENBE
Total assets BAEME 357,619 360,497 347,840 367,458 371,340
Total liabilities BERTE (85,968) (102,587) (90,124) (123,474) (134,685)
Total equity A 271,651 257,910 257,716 243,984 236,655
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Shareholder Information

Listing Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“"HKEx")
Stock Code
HKEXx 2317
Access to Bloombeg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value US$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

31 December, 2009
13 April, 2010
25 May, 2010
In the last week of
August, 2010*

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company's Hong Kong branch share registrars:

Tengis Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

£ EEBMERIERA A
FR([BERFT])

& 14X 5%

B 22 B 2317

ZIBhRE 2317 HK Equity

% 35 41 hiw T 2317.HK

BEEMN 4,000

H1E 0.01% 7T

RHE S TT

MBETEE

PEEELE —ETAF+=_A=+—8

EEEE N —ZE—ZTFNMA+=H

REBFEARE —E-ZTERA-_1+HH

FHEIEE R —ZT—ZF)\A

R&—EEH*

B% 5 AR %5
EAERRNEERERZER  FHEARE
ZEBROBEERLRDE:

EREARAA

BB BLT
ERANBER28%
SEEP L2612

T35 ¢ (852) 2980 1768
{8 : (852) 2528 3158

BAARBIRGO Z AL BEBC0I FHRE
HMEARBZBBERNBPELRIE
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Investor Relations

REEBE

The Group has been active in maintaining close relationship
with investors over the years. Its management believes by
maintaining close contact and good communication with investors
in a professional and open manner can allow it to collect more
information and valuable opinions for the benefit of enhancing
corporate governance. Timely disclosure of business strategies and
directions of the Group will also help strengthen investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings or conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and was
proactive in the dispatch of latest information about its business
to investors. Information about environmental issue concerning its
Vietnam operation was relayed to investors at first instance. This
is in line with the Group’s commitment to open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring investors fully understand its
operation for making sound investment decisions.

Vedan International appreciates the importance of providing up
to date information about the Group to investors. During the year
under review, the Group met with and hosted more than 20 one-
on-one meetings and teleconferences with renowned international
institutional investors including Citigroup, Value Partners, DBS
Vickers, CIMB Securities, Cazenove Asia, etc., making use of all the
different important channels to build investor relations.

In addition, the Group maintains interaction with investors via its
website. During the year, the Group posted its annual reports, interim
reports and all relevant announcements on its website promptly for
the convenient access and reference by investors. The Company
website address is: http://www.vedaninternational.com

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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